Planning Committee
22 February 2017
7.30 pm at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton, SM1 1EA



To all members of the Planning Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair
Councillors:

Councillor Samantha Bourne
Councillor Muhammad Sadiq
Hamish Pollock, Jason Reynolds, Kevin Burke, Margaret Court,
Vincent Galligan, Patrick McManus, Tony Shields and Graham Whitham

Substitutes:

Moira Butt, Tim Crowley, Mary Burstow, Amy Haldane and
Hanna Zuchowska

At the discretion of the Chair a Sutton resident may address the meeting for a maximum of four
minutes about a planning application that is on the agenda, providing they notify the Committee
Support officer below by midday on the day of the meeting or, failing that, at the meeting at least
15 minutes before it is due to start. If more than one resident wishes to address the meeting about
the same application they will be asked to select a single speaker. If they cannot do so additional
speakers will be allowed, providing an objection is only heard once and the time limit is divided
between the speakers.
The applicant will be given a similar opportunity to address the meeting.
One ward councillor may address the meeting for a maximum of four minutes about an application,
unless there is an opposing view, providing beforehand they have notified the Committee Manager
below that they wish to do so.
This meeting will be recorded and made available on the Council’s website.
Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
10 February 2017

Enquiries to: Committee Services | Tel: 020 8770 4990 | Email: committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA

1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

MINUTES

1 - 12

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meetings held on 21
December 2016 and 11 January 2017.
3.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

13 - 14

4.

APPLICATION NO. 2016/75591/FUL Felnex Pipework

15 - 42

Installation of underground heating pipes, electrical cabling, communication
cabling and associated works to allow transfer of hot water and high speed
data through a decentralised energy network.
5.

APPLICATION NO. 2016/75813/FUL 14 The Avenue, Cheam

43 - 60

Erection of a 3-bedroomed detached two storey house at rear of garden, and
erection of a rear boundary wall up to a maximum height of 1.8m and retaining
wall up to a maximum height of 550mm. Formation of a hard-standing at front
and vehicle access onto Shirley Avenue, provision of two car parking spaces,
and cycle and refuse storage
6.

APPLICATION NO. 2016/75975/FUL Southfields Court, 180 Sutton
Common Road

61 - 80

Demolition of existing 22 garages and erection of a detached two storey
building comprising eight 1-bedroomed self-contained flats involving cycle and
refuse stores and alterations to existing parking layout.
7.

APPLICATION NO. 2016/74612/FUL 2 Vernon Road Sutton

81 - 102

Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a two storey building with roof
accommodation to provide four 4 bedroomed dwellings and one car parking
space
8.

ANY URGENT BUSINESS,
brought forward at the direction of the Chair, who has approved the reason for
the urgency.

GLOSSARY OF COMMON PLANNING TERMS AND ABBREVIATIONS
Follows reports

103 - 106

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound. Leave the building
immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire exit
into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1

Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Entrance
Lower Square

Exit

Holiday Inn
Car Park

Reminder – Declarations of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at
this meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on
the matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with
knowledge of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is
likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the
interest and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an
interest you should always declare it.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2
Planning Committee
21 December 2016

PLANNING COMMITTEE
21 December 2016 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:

111.

Councillor Samantha Bourne (Chair), Councillor Muhammad Sadiq
(Vice-Chair) and Councillors Hamish Pollock, Jason Reynolds,
Kevin Burke, Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan, Tony Shields and
Graham Whitham

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Patrick McManus.

112.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2016 were unavailable in draft form as
yet.

113.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

6. APPLICATION NO. B2016/75397 - 18 Stanley Road, Sutton, SM2 6TB.
Councillor Tony Shields, Non Pecuniary, de-delegated the application, but it was confirmed
he would approach with an open mind.
7. APPLICATION NO. D2016/75556 - 2 Woodcote Avenue, Wallington, SM6 0QS.
Councillor Muhammad Sadiq, Non Pecuniary, the application was in his ward, but it was
confirmed he would approach with an open mind.
9. APPLICATION NO. C2016/75306 - Lawn View Grove Park, High Street, Carshalton, SM5
3BB.
Councillor Hamish Pollock, Non Pecuniary, the application was in his ward, but it was
confirmed he would approach with an open mind.

114.

APPLICATION NO. B2016/75344/FUL - ROYAL MARSDEN HOSPITAL, DOWNS
ROAD, SUTTON SM2 5PT
The Committee considered a report on the above application for Relocation of car parking
and realignment of access road within site (Application B2016/75344) and Variation of
Condition 26 (Parking) of previously approved application B2012/65960/FUL (Application
B2016/75333).
The item was deferred from the 30 November 2016 on the basis of a need for further
information on the permanent and displaced parking provision along with agreement from
the St Helier and Epsom Trust.
Peter Mattey, an objector, briefly addressed the meeting under Standing Order 31, and the
applicant replied.
The principal issues raised by the objector were: The additional spaces should not be at a rate which would disadvantage staff.
The officer clarified that these concerns were addressed by Condition 10 and confirmed that
the RMH had stipulated these spaces would be provided on the same contractual basis and
cost as the existing spaces within the site.

1

Page 2

Agenda Item 2

Planning Committee
21 December 2016
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
Application 2016/75344/FUL:
To grant (9)

Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Hamish Pollock, Jason
Reynolds, Kevin Burke, Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan, Tony Shields and
Graham Whitham.

Application 2016/75333/FUL:
To grant (9)

Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Hamish Pollock, Jason
Reynolds, Kevin Burke, Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan, Tony Shields and
Graham Whitham.

Resolved: That planning permission be granted for applications Nos. 2016/75344/FUL and
Application 2016/75333/FUL, subject to the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in
the Appendix to these Minutes.

115.

APPLICATION NO. B2016/75333/FUL - ROYAL MARSDEN HOSPITAL, DOWNS
ROAD, SUTTON SM2 5PT
The application was considered in conjunction with the previous item and there voted.

116.

APPLICATION NO. B2016/75397 - 18 STANLEY ROAD, SUTTON, SM2 6TB

The Committee considered a report on the above application for the demolition of building
and erection of a three storey building comprising five 2 bedroomed and one 3 bedroomed
self-contained flats with cycle and refuse stores and parking facilities.
The application had been de-delegated by Councillor Tony Shields on the basis that the
development is too cramped within the site.
Following the officer presentation, Councillor Tony Shields asked how amenity was catered
for above the ground floor. Officers confirmed that the level of amenity provision was
considered acceptable in this sustainable location. Members also queried access which was
confirmed to be secured by condition.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (8)

Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Hamish Pollock, Jason
Reynolds, Kevin Burke, Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan and Graham
Whitham.

Against (1)

Councillor Tony Shields

Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. B2016/75397, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

117.

APPLICATION NO. D2016/75556 - 2 WOODCOTE AVENUE, WALLINGTON, SM6

0QS
The Committee considered a report on the above application for the conversion of existing
premises into five 1 bedroomed and one 2 bedroomed self-contained flats with communal

2

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

Planning Committee
21 December 2016
lounge/kitchen area and staff/warden accommodation in connection with the use of the
property as a supported living facility for adults with learning disabilities.
Following the Officer presentation, Members requested information on which neighbours
had been notified of the application and it was confirmed that this had been in conformity
with the statement of community involvement.
Members requested further explanation as to the existing certificate for lawful usage and the
difference to this application, which was confirmed to be the self-contained element.
William Ries, an objector, and Councillor Steve Cook, a ward councillor, addressed the
meeting under Standing Order 31, and the applicant replied.
The principal issues raised by William Ries were: A lack of communication to local residents.
 A lack of clarification on the number of people who would live there and whether a carer
would.
 Traffic and parking concerns.
Members asked the objector as to communication with the applicant. The objector
responded that this had been limited and no community meeting had taken place. Members
additionally asked for information on traffic and parking in the area to which the objector
responded that the area was particularly busy at school times and the road was fairly
narrow.
The principal issues raised by Councillor Steve Cook, Ward Councillor, were: A lack of communication to local residents.
 A desire for conditions to limit the use of the property, landscaping and noise.
Members questioned the Ward Councillor as to the area’s status of Special Local Character
and whether this was considered harmful. The Ward Councillor said this was not a primary
concern of the local residents.
The Applicant, Mr Nadal, responded with regret that he had not been invited to a meeting of
local residents mentioned by Councillor Steve Cook. In addition, concerns over additional
traffic were rebutted and it was further explained that any objections by Highways had been
overcome. It was further clarified that support carers would be occasional visitors and one
support worker would be on site.
Members asked the applicant to confirm how many people would be residing in the property
and this was stated to be supported living for six people, with one flat having the facility of
two rooms for visitor purposes. The level of carer support was also queried due to the
impact on vehicle movements. The applicant explained that the movements would be
occasional and not simultaneous.
Moving to debate, Members further discussed the certificate of lawfulness relating to six
residents requiring care, a condition limiting the number of occupants, traffic movements
and the sui generis use of the application, with any amendment to this requiring planning
permission.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (8)

Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Hamish Pollock, Jason
Reynolds, Kevin Burke, Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan and Graham
Whitham.

3

Agenda Item 2

Page 4

Planning Committee
21 December 2016
Abstained (1) Councillor Tony Shields
Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. D2016/75556, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

118.

APPLICATION NO. D2016/75568 - 15 THE NEWLANDS, WALLINGTON, SM6 9JX

The Committee considered a report on the above application for the retention of outbuilding
at rear.
The application had been de-delegated by Councillor Manuel Abellan on the grounds of
over-development, noise pollution and layout and density of the building.
Following the Officer presentation, Members expressed their concern at the retrospective
nature of the planning permission sought and the proximity of the building in relation to the
boundary making maintenance difficult. The Officer explained that maintenance was a
private civil matter between neighbours.
In response to Member questioning, Officers confirmed that the outbuilding would have
fallen under permitted development if it was 0.2m lower in height and harm would have to be
demonstrated on this point. It was explained that the application had been brought before
the Committee following an enforcement investigation.
Patricia Anderson and Alex Kader, objectors speaking on behalf of neighbouring
households, addressed the meeting under Standing Order 31.
The principal issues raised by the objectors were: Proximity to neighbouring boundaries and the width of the outbuilding under the Party
Wall Act.
 The outbuilding was not sunken as stated in the Officer's report.
 The cramped layout and impact on the green garden landscape.
 Overdevelopment of back garden land.
 Characteristic of the neighbourhood.
 The setting of precedent.
 Loss of privacy and noise.
 Security and cohesiveness.
 Environmental issues.
The Chair reiterated that Party Wall concerns were a civil matter and could not be
determined upon by the Committee.
Moving to debate, Members discussed the outbuilding height under permitted development,
visual amenity and the character of the area.
Officers confirmed conditions had been put on the application and expanded upon rights
under the Permitted Development Order.
Councillor Tony Shields raised a motion to refuse based on the fact that the outbuilding had
been constructed to a height greater than the permitted development level, resulting in an
intensive usage of garden land detrimental to the neighbouring residents’ visual amenity and
the distinctive character and environment of the local area by way of its design. This was
seconded by Councillor Graham Whitham.
A poll vote was held on the motion to refuse when there voted:

4

Page 5
For (7)

Agenda Item 2

Planning Committee
21 December 2016
Councillors Muhammad Sadiq, Hamish Pollock, Jason Reynolds, Margaret
Court, Vincent Galligan, Tony Shields and Graham Whitham.

Abstained (2) Councillors Samantha Bourne and Kevin Burke
Resolved: That planning permission be refused for application No. D2016/75568, on the
basis that the outbuilding had been constructed to a height greater than the permitted
development level, resulting in an intensive usage of garden land detrimental to the
neighbouring residents’ visual amenity and the distinctive character and environment of the
local area by way of its design.
119. ORDER OF ITEMS
The Chair brought forward the items in Part B of the agenda which were taken in the order
indicated in the minutes.

120.

APPLICATION NO. B2016/75765 - TWO FREE STANDING KIOSKS OUTSIDE
ASDA, 229 HIGH STREET, SUTTON
The Committee considered a report on the above application for the installation of two
Entrepreneurs Kiosks with display plinth and retractable steel and fabric canopy in
connection with the use of the highway for retail purposes.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (9)

Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Hamish Pollock, Jason
Reynolds, Kevin Burke Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan, Tony Shields and
Graham Whitham.

Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. B2016/75765, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

121.

APPLICATION NO. B2016/74927 - CHAUCER HOUSE, CHAUCER GARDENS,
SUTTON, SM1 2QT
The Committee considered a report on the above application for the erection of a refuse and
recycling store to serve Chaucer House.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (9)

Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Hamish Pollock, Jason
Reynolds, Kevin Burke Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan, Tony Shields and
Graham Whitham.

Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. B2016/74927, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

122.

APPLICATION NO. A2016/75895 - THE TRADING HUT WORCESTER PARK
ALLOTMENTS, BOSCOMBE ROAD, WORCESTER PARK
The Committee considered a report on the above application for change of use of existing
allotment users hut to charity run arts and craft resource centre.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:

5

Page 6

Agenda Item 2
Planning Committee
21 December 2016
To grant (9)

Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Hamish Pollock, Jason
Reynolds, Kevin Burke Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan, Tony Shields and
Graham Whitham.

Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. A2016/75895, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

123.

APPLICATION NO. C2016/75201 - DRAPERS CENTRE, MONKEY PUZZLE WAY,
SM5 4NR
The Committee considered a report on the above application for formation of gates and
fencing up to a maximum height of 2.4m.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (9)

Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Hamish Pollock, Jason
Reynolds, Kevin Burke Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan, Tony Shields and
Graham Whitham.

Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. C2016/75201, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

124.

APPLICATION NO. C2016/75306 - LAWN VIEW GROVE PARK, HIGH STREET,
CARSHALTON, SM5 3BB
The Committee considered a report on the above application for use of premises for D2
(Assembly and Leisure) and A3 (Restaurant and Cafes) mixed use.
Following the Officer presentation, Members sought further detail on surrounding buildings
in the park area.
Wayne Spiller, an objector from the Grove Park Café, addressed the meeting under
Standing Order 31, and the applicant replied.
The principal issues raised by Wayne Spiller were: The proximity of the café to his business in the park.
 The different timings of notifications to neighbouring properties, and the non-inclusion of
the Grove Park Café.
 A café was not mentioned as part of the original soft play proposal.
 Contradictory information given at the September Carshalton and Clockhouse local
committee.
 Competing local business and the recent closure of a café on the High Street.
Members requested clarification of where the Grove Park Café was situated exactly.
The principal issues raised by Charlotte Dann, the applicant, were: The children’s soft play use and that the café was only open to those customers using
the leisure facilities.
 The community-based nature of the proposed use.
Members queried the opening hours of the facilities, which had also been placed under
condition, and the business direction, also under condition.

6

Page 7

Agenda Item 2

Planning Committee
21 December 2016
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (9) Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Hamish Pollock, Jason
Reynolds, Kevin Burke, Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan, Tony Shields and Graham
Whitham.
Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. C2016/75306, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

125.

APPLICATION NO. B2016/75603 - 40 THE RIDGWAY, SUTTON, SM2 5JU

The Committee considered a report on the above application for Conversion of loft space
involving formation of two dormer extensions at front, alterations to existing bay window and
chimney, and installation of four roof lights and four windows at side and rear.
The application had been de-delegated by Councillor Trish Fivey on the grounds of
overdevelopment and loss of privacy.
Following the Officer presentation, Members sought clarification on the design of the gable
end, the flank windows and the site plan.
Martin Wren, an objector, addressed the meeting under Standing Order 31.
The principal issues raised by Martin Wren were: Proximity to neighbouring properties.
 The height of the building and its dominating character.
 The means of development via a second application.
 Overlooking concerns from the second floor level.
Members asked for comment on the terracing design of the application from the objector in
light of his remarks on dominating character.
The Chair sought clarification from Officers as to the difference between the approved
design and the proposal before Committee. Officers confirmed that there was no increase in
the footprint, height or width of the property as part of this application. The application
sought the conversion of loft space involving the formation of two dormer extensions at front,
alterations to existing bay window at ground floor level and chimney, and installation of four
roof lights and four windows at side and rear.
Moving to debate, Members discussed the character of the area.
Following indication that Members were minded to refuse the application, Councillor Tony
Shields raised a motion to refuse based on the over-development and design of the
dormers, leading to the property being significantly more dominant than the surrounding built
environment, which would cause an adverse and overbearing effect on the streetscene. The
motion was seconded by Councillor Jason Reynolds.
A poll vote was held on the motion to refuse when there voted:
For (5)

Councillors Muhammad Sadiq, Jason Reynolds, Margaret Court, Tony
Shields and Graham Whitham.

Abstained (3) Councillors Samantha Bourne, Kevin Burke and Vincent Galligan

7

Page 8

Agenda Item 2

Planning Committee
21 December 2016
Resolved: That planning permission be refused for application No. B2016/75603, due to
over-development and design of the dormers, leading to the property being significantly
more dominant than the surrounding built environment, which would cause an adverse and
overbearing effect on the streetscene.

126.

APPLICATION NO. A2016/75721 - CHEAM FIELDS PRIMARY SCHOOL,
STOUGHTON AVENUE, CHEAM, SM3 8PQ
The Committee considered a report on the above application for the construction of
synthetic turf pitch with associated fencing.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (8)

Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Jason Reynolds, Kevin
Burke, Margaret Court, Vincent Galligan, Tony Shields and Graham
Whitham.

Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. A2016/75721, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

127.

ANY URGENT BUSINESS,

No urgent business was brought forward.

The meeting ended at 10.15 pm
Chair:
Date:

8

Page 9

Agenda Item 2
Planning Committee
11 January 2017

PLANNING COMMITTEE
11 January 2017 at 7.30 pm
MEMBERS:

128.

Councillor Samantha Bourne (Chair), Councillor Muhammad Sadiq
(Vice-Chair) and Councillors Hamish Pollock, Jason Reynolds,
Kevin Burke, Margaret Court, Patrick McManus, Tony Shields and
Graham Whitham

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies were received from Councillor Vincent Galligan, Councillor Mary Burstow
attended as a substitute.

129.

MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting held on 30 November 2016 were approved as a correct record,
and signed by the Chair.

130.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

4. APPLICATION NO. C2011/64918 - 107 Westmead Road, Sutton, Surrey, SM1 4JD.
Councillor Hamish Pollock, Non Pecuniary, as he had spoken about the application to some
of the residents in his ward, however confirmed that he would approach the application with
an open mind.
6. APPLICATION NO. D2016/74498 - 4 Belmont Road, Wallington, SM6 8TB.
Councillor Muhammad Sadiq, Non Pecuniary, as he had spoken to either the applicant or
the agent very briefly at a public event, but they did not discuss details of the application and
he confirmed he would approach the item with an open mind.
8. APPLICATION NO. D2016/75592 - Land adj. 37 Redford Avenue, Wallington, SM6 9DT.
Councillors Graham Whitham, Tony Shields, Jason Reynolds, Margaret Court, Hamish
Pollock and Mary Burstow Non Pecuniary, as they knew the agent for agenda item 8,
however all confirmed that they would approach the item with an open mind.

131.

ORDER OF ITEMS

The Chair announced that the order of items would be altered in order to take items 7 and 8
first. As such, items were discussed in the order as follows in the minutes.

132.

APPLICATION NO. D2016/75530 - WALLINGTON HIGH SCHOOL FOR GIRLS,
WOODCOTE ROAD, WALLINGTON, SM6 0PH
The Committee considered a report on the above application for the erection of a two storey
building to provide additional educational facilities.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (10) Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Graham Whitham, Tony
Shields, Patrick McManus, Kevin Burke, Jason Reynolds, Margaret Court,
Hamish Pollock and Mary Burstow.
Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. D2016/75530, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

1

Agenda Item 2

Page 10

Planning Committee
11 January 2017

133.

APPLICATION NO. D2016/75592 - LAND ADJ. 37 REDFORD AVENUE,
WALLINGTON, SM6 9DT
The Committee considered a report on the above application for the erection of a pair of 3
bedroomed semi-detached houses and two car parking spaces.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (10) Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Graham Whitham, Tony
Shields, Patrick McManus, Kevin Burke, Jason Reynolds, Margaret Court,
Hamish Pollock and Mary Burstow.
Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. D2016/75592, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

134.

APPLICATION NO. C2011/64918 - 107 WESTMEAD ROAD, SUTTON, SURREY,
SM1 4JD
The Committee considered a report on the above application for the demolition of all existing
buildings on the site and the erection of four buildings comprising: a three storey block with
retail or financial and professional service (Class A1 or A2) units on the ground floor and 6
two bedroom flats over (Block A); a three storey block comprising 6 two bedroom and 2 one
bedroom flats (Block B); a terrace comprising 5 three bedroom houses for occupation as
social housing (Block C) and a two storey terrace of 11 two storey two bedroom house
(Block D), together with layout of a new access road, 43 car parking spaces, cycle and
motor cycle storage, refuse storage and the re-siting of an electricity substation.
Cameron Penny, a supporter, and Ana Jablonska, an objector, addressed the meeting
under Standing Order 31, and Jon Dingle, the applicant’s agent, replied.
The principal issues raised by Cameron Penny were: He felt it would be an appropriate use of the land and would provide some much
needed housing stock.
 He referred to neighbouring concerns about noise, and highlighted that he felt the
noise was unlikely to increase compared to current traffic and noise in the local area.
 The application would be more attractive and appealing than what is presently at the
site.
The principal issues raised by Ana Jablonska were: Loss of privacy - Her house on Harold Road was constructed c.1885 and the houses
on that road had never been overlooked. The application would be three storeys and
cause residents to feel closed in.
 The proposed application would be higher than what currently stands at the site,
causing loss of light for neighbouring residents.
 There would be additional cars to park in an already saturated area, where finding a
parking space is difficult.
 The access road and the parking would be behind the gardens of Harold Road
residents, which would disrupt the ability for residents to enjoy their outdoor space.
The principal issues raised by Jon Dingle were: Census data suggested that the development was likely to amount to 31 vehicles
requiring spaces for parking, and the application offered 43 spaces for 25 living units.
He felt that the provision was ample for the predicted demand.

2

Page 11

Agenda Item 2

Planning Committee
11 January 2017
 The boundary between the development and the neighbours was robust with road
space separating the proposed buildings with the boundaries of neighbouring
properties.
Councillors sought clarification on the distance from proposed developments to the
neighbouring properties and Andy Webber, Head of Planning, confirmed that there would be
an acceptable distance due to the careful design of the site, which amounted to an increase
in distance for some neighbours and a reduction for others. Councillor Graham Whitham
raised concerns about difficulties within the borough in letting retail units, and the agent
responded that the units were not large, and that the applicant would be open to using the
spaces to let to small businesses in a future application.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (10) Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Graham Whitham, Tony
Shields, Patrick McManus, Kevin Burke, Jason Reynolds, Margaret Court,
Hamish Pollock and Mary Burstow.
Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. C2011/64918, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

135.

APPLICATION NO. B2016/75198 - LAND ADJ. KILLICK HOUSE, CROWN ROAD,
SUTTON
The Committee considered a report on the above application for the creation of a ball court
with enclosure, removal of 5 car parking spaces and creation of 15 new car parking spaces.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (10) Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Graham Whitham, Tony
Shields, Patrick McManus, Kevin Burke, Jason Reynolds, Margaret Court,
Hamish Pollock and Mary Burstow.
Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. B2016/75198, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

136.

APPLICATION NO. D2016/74498 - 4 BELMONT ROAD, WALLINGTON, SM6 8TB

The Committee considered a report on the above application for the change of use to House
in Multiple Occupation.
Mr Bev Legge, an objector, and Councillor Joyce Melican, a ward councillor, addressed the
meeting under Standing Order 31, and the applicant, Anwar Sharif, answered resulting
questions from Councillors.
The principal issues raised by Mr Bev Legge were: His family have lived on Belmont road for 23 years, and he was one of 12 residents
who submitted an objection in writing.
 The site was previously occupied by one family with 4 members, and surrounding
buildings are either single occupation, or divided into two or three flats.
 The fire service located on the road would be affected by increased congestion on the
road which has already seen an increase in congestion, causing delays to emergency
services.

3

Page 12

Agenda Item 2

Planning Committee
11 January 2017
 The application proposed too many households to be ‘squeezed’ into a site that would
usually contain much less people.
Don Anyiam (Principal Engineer, Highways and Transport) confirmed that the authority had
not received any complaints about access issues from the fire brigade.
The principal issues raised by Councillor Joyce Melican were: The application would be out of character with the rest of the road.
 The proposed parking plan provides just one parking space for the number of
bedrooms proposed.
 The rooms appear to be smaller than a desirable size.
 The entrance to the side of the property would disrupt the daily living for residents at 6
Belmont Road with 10 extra households passing through.
Councillor Shields expressed concerns about the over-intensification of use. Councillor
Hamish Pollock suggested that the relevant Local Committee could investigate the
possibility of double yellow lines on the road in order to prevent access issues for
emergency service vehicles. Councillors debated the suitability of smaller, cheap
accommodation, and the needs of the population.
A poll vote on the officers’ recommendation to grant permission was held in accordance with
Standing Order 31.4, when there voted:
To grant (8)

Councillors Samantha Bourne, Muhammad Sadiq, Graham Whitham, Patrick
McManus, Jason Reynolds, Margaret Court, Hamish Pollock and Mary
Burstow

Against (2)

Councillors Kevin Burke and Tony Shields.

Resolved: That planning permission be granted for application No. D2016/74498, subject to
the conditions, reasons and informatives set out in the Appendix to these Minutes.

137.

ANY URGENT BUSINESS

No urgent business was brought forward.

The meeting ended at 9.03 pm
Chair:
Date:

4

Page 13

Agenda Item 3

Reminder – Declaration of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they should
declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at this
meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’ Interests or
to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this meeting that you have
such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at this
meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that interest at this
meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held whilst
that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at this
meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on the matter.
However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with knowledge of the relevant
facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of
the public interest then you should declare the interest and withdraw from the room or
chamber where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct and
Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you should seek
advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an interest you
should always declare it.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 15

Agenda Item 4

PLANNING COMMITTEE - Date: 22 February 2017
Report of the Executive Head for Economic Development, Planning and Sustainability.
Ref: C2016/75591/FUL

Site:
Proposal:

Applicant:
Agent:

WARD: C11 / WANDLE VALLEY

Time Taken:
7 weeks, 0 days

Felnex Trading Estate, 190 London Road, Hackbridge. SM6 7EL.
Installation of underground heating pipes, electrical cabling, communication
cabling and associated works to allow transfer of hot water and high speed data
through a decentralised energy network.
Barratt Homes

Recommendation:
GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION

Reason for Report to Committee: The Council has an interest in the land and an objection
has been received.
Summary of why application proposals are acceptable:
●

The proposal is considered to be in accordance with the National Planning Policy
Framework, the London Plan 2016 Policy 5.2 and 5.6 and the council's’ Local
Development Framework as the proposal would comply with Policy DM6 which relates
to Climate Change Mitigation and specifically part (c)(ii) of the policy which requires
proposed developments be designed to connect to a Decentralised Energy Network
(DEN) particularly in Hackbridge.

●

The proposal would not result in a loss of outlook or privacy and no significant harm
would be caused through noise or disturbance.

1.0

BACKGROUND AND PLANNING HISTORY

1.1

Site and Surroundings:

1.2

The former Felnex Trading Estate occupies a 7.7 hectare site with frontages onto
London Road (A237) and Hackbridge Road (B277). Hackbridge Railway station and
the residential cottages of London Road are opposite the site to the east. The site
adjoins the railway line to the south and the industrial units located on Restmor Way to
the west, beyond which is the River Wandle. The site is abutted to the north by ‘The
Wave’ 49 Hackbridge Road, Hackbridge Green, the Red Lion Public House (grade II
listed), Hackbridge Primary School and Saxon House.

1.3

The site was first developed for industrial purposes circa 1917 as home to the

Agenda Item 4

Page 16

Hackbridge Cable Company. The site is now vacant, the structures have been
completely demolished and the approved redevelopment of the site has commenced.
1.4

It should be noted at the outset that the Council has an interest in the land due to the
Council’s proposals for SDEN (Sutton Decentralised Energy Network) to be connected
to the Felnex development in the future.

1.5

Such commercial interests, either of the Council or private individuals, are not planning
considerations and should be given no weight in the determination of planning
applications by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The policy position in relation to
the development providing a decentralised energy network is discussed later in this
report and there is no policy requirement within this application that the applicant
should give preference to one decentralised energy network provider, or source over
another.

1.6

On the 3 March 2015 the Housing, Economy and Business Committee agreed, among
other matters, that heat supply contracts should be completed with Viridor and the
Felnex Developer and that the proposed connection of Felnex to the SDEN is Phase 1
of a longer term ambition. However, this Council decision was taken independently
from the Council as LPA, has had no bearing on the officer recommendation to the
Committee and should be given no weight in the decision of the Planning Committee.

1.7

Site Specific LDF Designation:

1.8

The site is identified for mixed use redevelopment in the Sutton Core Strategy. Policy
PMP7 of the Core Strategy promotes the development of Hackbridge as a district
centre and a sustainable neighbourhood and states the Council will support proposals
for new shopping, housing and commercial development and a range of social and
community facilities which will contribute to the growth and regeneration of Hackbridge
and the creation of a ‘low carbon zone’ within the neighbourhood.

1.9

The Felnex Trading Estate is identified for ‘residential, retail, employment and
community uses’ in the Site Development Policies DPD as site BW12.

1.10

The site is located within the Limit of Sustainable Residential Development around
Hackbridge; Hackbridge District Centre; an Archaeological Priority Area; an Area of
Taller Building Potential and a Decentralised Energy Opportunity Area.

1.11

Relevant Planning History:

1.12

A number of permissions were granted between 1992 and 2005 for changes of use,
new boundary walls, illuminated signs and other minor work to individual units on the
estate.

1.13

In relation to the comprehensive redevelopment of the site the following applications
are relevant.

1.14

C2009/62175/OUT – Outline application to determine access and layout for up to 725

Page 17

Agenda Item 4

residential units, a foodstore with a net floor area of up to 2,600 square metres, 2,000
square metres approximately of additional retail floor space within Class A1, 6,100
square metres approximately of office and workshop space within Classes B1(a), (b)
and (c), a residential care home within Class C2, a community building with doctor's
surgery within Class D1 and an energy centre, together with open space, children's
play space, landscaping, car parking and access roads. Permission granted 28 March
2012.
1.15

C2012/66386/DEM - Application to determine whether prior approval of the Local
Planning Authority is required to the method of demolition of the Felnex Trading
Estate. No objection raised 27 September 2012.

1.16

C2014/68760/FUL – Minor amendments to layout and footprint involving
amalgamation of the main block fronting London Road (including the food store) into
the adjacent proposed residential development in accordance with submitted drawings
Illustrative plan 11025 P1-113; Land use parameter plan 11025 P1-110; Massing
parameter plan 11025 P1-112; Movement parameter plan P1-111. (Variation of
condition 45 of previously approved application number C2009/62175/OUT) which
states: ‘The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved drawings, all dated 10 May 2011: Illustrative plan 1393/P/001 Rev
B; Land use parameter plan 1393/P/002 Rev B; Massing parameter plan 1393/P/003
Rev B; Movement parameter plan 1393/P/004 Rev B). Permission granted 16 May
2014.

1.17

C2014/68755/ARM - Approval of reserved matters for part of site (phase 1) relating to
appearance, scale and landscaping pursuant to condition 1 of application number
C2014/68760/OUT for a mixed commercial/residential development comprising
buildings between one and six storeys in height involving 725 residential units, a
foodstore with a net floor area of up to 2,600 square metres, 2,000 square metres
approximately of additional retail floor space within Class A1, 6,100 square metres
approximately of office and workshop space within Classes B1(a), (b) and (c), a
residential care home within Class C2, a community building with doctor's surgery
within Class D1 and an energy centre, together with open space, children's play
space, landscaping, car parking and access roads. Permission granted 3 July 2014.

1.18

C2016/73625/OUT - Variation of condition 3 (Phasing Plan), 18 (Mitigation), 24
(Heating/Energy) and 44 (Drawing Numbers) (minor material amendment application)
of previously approved Outline application no. C2014/68760/OUT to determine access
and layout for up to 725 dwellings, a food store with a net sales area up to 2564
square metres, 948 square metres of additional retail floor space within Class A1,
6100 square metres of office and workshop space within Class B1(a), (b) and (c), 7740
square metres of assisted living accommodation (Class C2), 565 square metres of
health facility and 98 square metres as a community room together with energy centre,
open space, children's play space, landscaping, car parking and access roads.
Permission granted 20 July 2016.

1.19

C2016/73672/ARM – Application for approval of reserved matters for Phases 1 and 2
to determine appearance, scale and landscaping pursuant to outline application

Agenda Item 4

Page 18

number C2016/73625 for a mixed development comprising 2564 square metres of A1
(foodstore) floorspace, an additional 948 square metres of A1 (retail) floor space and
725 dwellings comprising 562 one, two and three bedroomed flats in sixteen blocks
rising from four to six storeys in height and 163 two, three and four- bedroomed 3
storey houses and three storey houses with roof accommodation. Provision of assisted
living accommodation containing 80 units with ancillary accommodation and a medical
facility within a five storey building. Provision of garages, carports, surface and
basement car parking, refuse, cycle stores, energy centre, sub stations, children's play
areas, hard and soft landscaping, new access roads from London Road and
Hackbridge Road and alterations to road junctions. Permission granted 7 September
2016.
1.20

C2016/73965/ARM – Application for approval of reserved matters for Phase 3
(Business Forest) to determine appearance, scale and landscaping pursuant to outline
application number C2016/73625 for erection of a four storey building comprising
6,100 square metres of B1(Business) floorspace. Provision of cycle and refuse
storage, 57 car parking spaces and associated landscaping. Permission granted 7
September 2016.

2.0

APPLICATION PROPOSALS

2.1

Details of Proposal:

2.2

Planning permission is sought for the installation of underground heating pipes,
electrical cabling, communication cabling and associated works to allow transfer of hot
water and high speed data through a decentralised energy network.

2.3

The application was screened for an Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) and
consequently the applicants have submitted an EIA addendum to the previous EIA
submitted with application ref:C2016/73625

2.4

Planning permission was granted in September 2016 for an energy centre and
substations required for the Decentralised Energy Network (DEN), above ground,
through planning permissions C2016/73625/OUT and C2016/73672/ARM.

2.5

Significant amendments to application since submitted:

2.6

None.

3.0

PUBLICITY

3.1

Adjoining Occupiers Notified

3.2

Method of Notification:

3.3

Letters were sent to 349 adjoining occupiers in the surrounding area on 11th January
2017 and three site notices were erected within the vicinity of the site on the same day.

Page 19

Agenda Item 4

3.4

Number of Letters Received:

3.5

None.

3.6

Official Consultation:

3.7

Internal:

3.8

Sustainability:

3.9

No objection.

3.10

Waste Management:

3.11

No objection.

3.12

Crime Prevention Officer:

3.13

No objection.

3.14

Lead Local Flood Authority:

3.15

No objection.

3.16

Urban Design Officer:

3.17

No objection.

3.18

Environmental Health:

3.19

No objection, subject to a condition for controlling dust and noise during the
underground works.

3.20

Biodiversity:

3.21

No objection.

3.22

Highways Officer:

3.23

Any comments received will be reported orally to committee.

3.24

External:

3.25

Network Rail:

3.26

No objection.

3.27

National Grid:

Page 20

Agenda Item 4

3.28

Any comments received will be reported orally to committee.

3.29

Thames Water:

3.30

Any comments received will be reported orally to committee.

3.31

Environment Agency:

3.32

No objection, subject to a condition should any contamination not previously identified
be found then the developer shall submit a remediation strategy.

3.33

Sutton and East Surrey Water:

3.34

Any comments received will be reported orally to committee.

3.35

Southern Gas Network:

3.36

Any comments received will be reported orally to committee.

3.37

Transport for London:

3.38

No objection.

3.39

Sutton Police:

3.40

Any comments received will be reported orally to committee.

3.41

Councillor Representation:

3.42

Councillor Mattey objects to the proposal in relation to the links between SDEN and
Viridor. As stated in paragraph 1.4 - 1.6 above, these commercial interests, either of
the Council or private individuals, are not planning considerations and should be given
no weight in the determination of planning applications by the LPA. The policy position
in relation to the development providing a decentralised energy network set out later in
this report and there is no policy requirement within this application that the applicant
should give preference to one decentralised energy network provider, over another.

3.43

The issues raised by Councillor Mattey were ● SDEN has been partially funded by Viridor the company that directed money into
the Charity Viridor,
● Five hundred people have requested an independent enquiry into the links
between Sutton Lib Dem, Viridor and the Charity Viridor Environmental Credits,
● Monies were to SDEN from Viridor because VEC ensured that a project closely
associated with a former Councillor received a donation,
● The funding for SDEN came as a result of misused taxpayers monies to
influence decisions,

Page 21

Agenda Item 4

● Without an incinerator, SDEN and Holy Trinity Church would not have received
funding,
● Object to Barratts doing business with SDEN until an independent survey can
establish that Mr Drage was not compromised by his relationship with Viridor and
the promise of funding to Holy Trinity Church.
3.44

As stated the issued raised above are considered to be non-material to this planning
application.

4.0

MATERIAL PLANNING POLICIES

4.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that when
determining a planning application, regard is to be had to the development plan, and
the determination shall be made in accordance with the development plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan for the London
Borough of Sutton comprises the following documents:
● London Plan 2016
● The Core Planning Strategy December 2009
● The Site Development Policies DPD March 2012

4.2

Also a material consideration in determining planning applications are:
● National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
● National Planning Policy Guidance (NPPG)
● Adopted London Borough of Sutton Supplementary Planning Guidance
Documents
● Draft Local Plan
● Human Rights Act 2008
● Equality Act 2010

4.3

Material Planning Policies Considered in Determining this Application:

4.4

London Plan 2016:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

1.1 Delivering the Strategic Vision and Objectives for London
3.3 Increasing Housing Supply
3.4 Optimising Housing Potential
3.5 Quality and Design of Housing Developments
3.6 Children and Young People’s Play and Informal Recreation Facilities
3.7 Large Residential Developments
3.8 Housing Choice
3.9 Mixed and Balanced Communities
3.11 Affordable Housing Targets
3.12 Negotiating Affordable Housing on Individual Private Residential and Mixed
Use Schemes
3.13 Affordable Housing Thresholds
3.16 Protection and Enhancement of Social Infrastructure

Page 22

Agenda Item 4
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
4.5

3.17 Health and Social Care Facilities
4.8 Supporting a Successful and Diverse Retail Sector and Related Facilities and
Services
4.12 Improving Opportunities for All
5.2 Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
5.5 Decentralised Energy Networks
5.6 Decentralised Energy in Development Proposals
5.7 Renewable Energy
5.11 Green Roofs and Development Site Environs
5.12 Flood Risk Management
5.13 Sustainable Drainage
5.14 Water Quality and Wastewater Infrastructure
5.15 Water Use and Supplies
5.21 Contaminated Land
6.2 Providing Public Transport Capacity and Safeguarding Land for Transport
6.3 Assessing Effects of Development on Transport Capacity
6.4 Enhancing London’s Transport Connectivity
6.9 Cycling
6.11 Smoothing Traffic Flow and Tackling Congestion
6.12 Road Network Capacity
6.13 Parking
7.1 Lifetime Neighbourhoods
7.2 An Inclusive Environment
7.3 Designing out crime
7.4 Local Character
7.5 Public Realm
7.6 Architecture
7.7 Location and Design of Tall and Large Buildings
7.8 Heritage Assets and Archaeology
7.15 Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes
7.19 Biodiversity and Access to Nature
8.2 Planning Obligations
8.3 Community Infrastructure Levy

Core Planning Strategy:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

PMP1 Housing Provision
PMP7 Hackbridge
BP1 Housing Density
BP2 Affordable Housing
BP5 Improving Health & Wellbeing
BP6 One Planet Living
BP7 Flood Risk and Climate Change Adaptation
BP9 Enabling Smarter Travel Choices: An Area Wide Approach
BP10: Transport: Strategic and Borough-Wide Proposals.
BP12 Good Urban Design and Heritage
BP13 Taller Buildings

Page 23
●
4.6

5.1

DM1 Character and Design
DM2 Protecting Amenity
DM3 Enhancing Streetscene and Public Realm
DM4 Historic Environment
DM5 Sustainable Design and Construction
DM6 Climate Change Mitigation
DM7 Flood Risk
DM9 Water Supply, Water Quality and Sewerage Infrastructure
DM10 Air Quality
DM11 Contaminated Land
DM12 Noise and Vibration
DM17 Biodiversity, Habitats and Species
DM19 Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
DM20 Assessing the Transport Impact of New Development
DM21 New Development and the Highway Network
DM22 Parking
DM25 Maximising Affordable Housing Provision
DM26 Housing Mix
DM29 Housing Standards
DM31 Social and Community Infrastructure
DM33 Strategic and Established Industrial Locations
DM35 Development in Town & Local Centres
DM37 Shopping Frontages in Town Centres
DM41 Site Allocations

Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents:
●

5.0

DP2 Planning Obligations

Site Development Policies DPD:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

4.7

Agenda Item 4

SPD14 Creating Locally Distinctive Places.

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The principal considerations (including whether any material planning objections have
been reasonably addressed) in relation to this application are:
● Principle
- Archaeology
- Air Quality
- Ground Conditions
- Hydrology and Drainage
- Noise and Vibration
● Design Quality
● Impact on Neighbours
● Highways
● Sustainability

Page 24

Agenda Item 4

● Trees
● Planning Obligations
● Other Material Considerations
5.2

Principle:

5.3

An outline planning permission for access and siting for the mixed use development on
this site was originally granted in March 2012 and subsequently amended twice
through applications under section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.
The first Section 73 application, C2014/68760/OUT which varied the phasing plan of
the original outline permission and was approved and granted permission in May 2014.
The second variation C2016/73625/OUT varied a number of planning conditions and
amended the design of the scheme and was granted permission in September 2016.
The remaining reserved matters, which were appearance, scale and landscaping,
were granted in September 2016. Construction of the development began in late 2016.

5.4

Planning conditions 23, 24 and 25 of the outline consent C2016/73625/OUT set out
the requirement for a Combined Heating and Power (CHP) facility to provide heating to
all dwellings on the site and require the network to be designed in such a way that
allows for the future connection to other off-site district wide energy networks, should
such exist in the future.

5.5

In addition an obligation on the developer to provide an energy network is also
contained within Schedule 13 of the Section 106, pursuant to the consent
C2016/73625/OUT, which requires the owner to use reasonable endeavours to ensure
the development is designed and constructed to facilitate the delivery of an area-wide
DEN.

5.6

This proposal seeks consent for the installation of underground heating pipes,
electrical cabling, communication cabling, substations, energy centre and associated
works to allow the transfer of hot water through a decentralised energy network for use
by the permitted Felnex development and to provide a future connection point on
Hackbridge Road.

5.7

The application shows the extent of pipe works within the site boundary which would
be powered by energy generated either by a CHP located within the site or through
SDEN utilising the waste heat produced by the ERF. The difference between the two
options is that the proposed SDEN pipe works are distinct as including a section of
pipe that runs east from the proposed energy centre to a position that could connect to
future SDEN pipe-work that would connect the approved pipeline with the boundary of
the Beddington Farmlands Site with this site This is the subject to a separate
application. Both DEN solutions require consent to ensure a sustainable energy
solution can be developed.

5.8

London Plan Policy 5.2 Development proposals should make the fullest contribution to
minimising carbon dioxide emissions in accordance with the following energy
hierarchy:

Page 25

Agenda Item 4

1. Be lean: use less energy
2. Be clean: supply energy efficiently
3. Be green: use renewable energy
5.9

Policy 5.6 of the London Plan states proposals should evaluate the feasibility of
Combined Heat and Power (CHP) systems, and where a new CHP system is
appropriate also examine opportunities to extend the system beyond the site boundary
to adjacent sites.

5.10

Policy DM6 of the Site Development Policies DPD states In seeking to minimise
carbon dioxide emissions on or near site in accordance with the above targets,
proposed developments should apply the Mayor’s energy hierarchy by:
(i) Achieving the highest standards of energy efficient design and layout;
(ii) Being designed to connect to and, where appropriate, contribute towards
existing or future decentralised energy (DE) networks, supplied by low or
zerocarbon energy, particularly within Hackbridge and other DE opportunity
areas identified in maps 2.68 to 2.70, by applying the Council’s “DE Protocol‟
set out in Paragraph 3.67; and
(iii) Using renewable sources of energy generated on-site.

5.11

As such, the provision of a decentralised energy network within this major
redevelopment site would be policy compliant and achieved by either of the proposed
options. As previously stated there is no policy requirement that the applicant should
give preference to one decentralised energy network provider or energy source over
another. As such, the proposal is considered acceptable in principle subject to
compliance with all other policy and having regard to other material considerations.

5.12

Sutton’s Decentralised Energy Network (SDEN):

5.13

With this option, the site would be connected to the SDEN in order to provide heat for
heating and hot water to all dwellings, retail units and commercial premises. The heat
would be delivered into the site through a pair of flow and return pipes from off-site
CHP engines utilising gas derived from waste products produced by the Beddington
Energy Recovery Facility (ERF). The facilitating works to connect the Felnex site and
ERF are the subject of a separate planning application. The connection to SDEN
would be located from London Road into the Energy Centre which is located at the
South Western part of the application site.

5.14

This option would result in a connection to the proposed pipework to facilitate the
distribution to the energy centre from where it is pumped throughout the site. There are
four separate plant rooms on the site which each contain heat exchangers providing
hydraulic separation from the primary distribution to the various blocks and houses,
one in Block P and Block B and 2 in the energy centre (1.5 metres by 1 metre by 1
metre).

5.15

The proposed pipe network, which would run under the roads, includes a dedicated
pipe which will run from the energy centre in a northerly direction to the Hackbridge

Agenda Item 4

Page 26

Road frontage of the site, which would enable the potential future extension of the
SDEN network to other developments.
5.16

From the substation plant rooms, secondary circuits are extended to serve the
residential blocks, retail and commercial areas and dwellinghouses. The proposed
pipework would be installed below ground and would be of robust construction, with a
steel inner pipe with high performance insulation fitted by the manufacturer prior to
delivery to site. An external protection membrane would be fitted together with a
system that would detect water penetration into the preformed insulated pipe.

5.17

The pipes are set at various depths which follow the road network; the depths will vary
depending on the constraints of other permanent underground services and drainage
on site. However, it is not anticipated that any pipes will extend more than 2 metres
below ground.

5.18

The energy centre will also incorporate back up gas fired boilers, in case of interruption
of the heat supply from the SDEN network. The flue from the Energy Centre will be at
a height of 3.5m above the roof Block D of the permitted outline permission. The
Energy Centre, located adjacent to Block D, is a standalone building of approximately
3 storeys. No external alterations are proposed to facilitate this option within the site
boundary of the Felnex Site that have not previously been approved.

5.19

Onsite Decentralised Energy Network (DEN):

5.20

With this option, there would be an onsite district heat network installed to provide heat
for heating and hot water services to all the residential blocks, retail and commercial
areas and dwellinghouses.

5.21

The heat would be delivered to the site from the onsite energy centre, located in the
south west corner of the site. Four separate plant rooms would be provided on the site
which each contains heat exchangers providing hydraulic separation from the primary
distribution to the various blocks and houses. The pipework would also be sized for a
future connection on Hackbridge Road. From the substation plant rooms secondary
circuits would be extended to serve the residential blocks, retail and commercial areas
and houses.

5.22

As with the SDEN proposal the pipework installed below ground will be of robust
construction, with a steel inner pipe with high performance insulation fitted by the
manufacturer prior to delivery to site. An external protection membrane would also be
fitted together with a system that will detect water penetration into the preformed
insulated pipe.

5.23

In accordance with the agreed and signed Section 106 the DEN extends to the
boundaries of the site to enable further connection to neighbouring developments.

5.24

The principle of providing for a DEN at Felnex was assessed against planning policy
as part of the decision making process for the outline planning permission for the
mixed-use development. At the time of consent the application was considered to be

Page 27

Agenda Item 4

acceptable and in accordance with the provisions of the Development Plan and other
material considerations. There are no external alterations proposed that were not
included in the redevelopment of the Felnex site.
5.25

Environmental Impact Assessment:

5.26

It was agreed that due to the planning history and the submission of a recent EIA’s in
2009 and 2016 in relation to the redevelopment of the site, that a formal EIA scoping
exercise was not required. It was also agreed that the ES (Environmental Statement)
addendum should focus on the installation and operation of the energy pipes servicing
the application site. This considers any effects not previously assessed by the
submitted EIA’s which assessed the redevelopment of the site, in relation to the
construction and operation of the pipes and the potential for cumulative effects. The
assessment considers the impacts in relation to both the SDEN option and the onsite
DEN option, where relevant. Following a review of the previously submitted ES’s, it
was agreed that the scope of the ES Addendum should focus on the following
technical topics:
●
●
●
●
●

Archaeology
Air Quality
Ground Conditions
Hydrology and Drainage, and
Noise and Vibration

5.27

Archaeology:

5.28

Archaeology was considered within the original 2009 ES. Given the proposed pipelines
would be located below the ground, it is deemed appropriate to consider this topic
further within this ES Addendum.

5.29

A Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation was carried out by MOLA in October
2015 and submitted to LBS in support of an application to discharge planning condition
number 31 of the outline decision notice (Ref. C2014/68760).

5.30

Condition 31 stated: “No development shall take place on each phase of the
development until the applicant has secured the implementation of a programme of
archaeological work in accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has
been submitted by the applicant and approved by the local planning authority. The
development shall only take place in accordance with the detailed scheme pursuant to
this condition. The archaeological works shall be carried out only by a qualified
investigating body acceptable to the local planning authority.”

5.31

Previously an Archaeological Assessment was prepared in 2009 in support of the
original outline planning application and ES. Four archaeological investigations were
carried out by a qualified archaeologist at the application site between 10th March
2014 and 22nd December 2014. The archaeological investigations began with
pre-demolition Stages 1A and 2A in the eastern and western half of the application
site, designated construction Phase 1 and Phase 2 respectively. The Stage 1A

Agenda Item 4

Page 28

evaluation concluded that there was no evidence of human activity; the area had been
terraced to the top of the natural sand and gravel for the construction of the previously
existing industrial units. Historic England agreed that no mitigation was required for the
Phase 1 area.
5.32

Evaluation trenches in the western edge of the site revealed that there is good
potential for archaeological survival. However, the Written Scheme of Investigation
held that whilst the archaeological remains are of local significance there is nothing to
suggest that they are of regional or national importance. It is considered that the
previously submitted Written Scheme of Investigation and subsequent Report of
Archaeological Investigation demonstrates no significant impacts will arise as a result
of the energy centre and associated pipework. Furthermore, given that the planning
conditions relating to the archaeology (condition no. 31) have been approved by the
Council, it is considered that no further impacts are associated with the pipeline.

5.33

As such, no concern is raised to this planning application in regards to archaeology.

5.34

Air Quality:

5.35

In 2009, RSK prepared the air quality chapter of the 2009 ES and a standalone air
quality assessment was prepared and submitted in 2016 to accompany application ref:
C2016/73625/FUL.

5.36

The 2016 air quality assessment accounted for the proposed introduction of an energy
centre and changes in baseline air quality data and prevailing legislation, policy and
guidance made since the 2009 ES was produced. The 2016 air quality assessment
considered the impacts of installing boilers at an energy centre, which would meet
peak demand for heat otherwise supplied by the SDEN scheme.

5.37

The 2016 air quality assessment did not explicitly include an assessment of
construction phase impacts associated with the installation of pipe work for the
connection. It also did not specifically assess the impacts on air quality of the potential
sources of the DEN at the energy centre, in comparison to future air quality without the
development or the wider Felnex development in place. The submitted ES addendum
considers the possible impacts of the energy centre on local air quality, under both the
SDEN and CHP schemes.

5.38

The ES addendum states that the likely combined air quality effects of the proposal
and the development of the wider Felnex site, were identified in the 2016 air quality
assessment. The air quality assessment indicated that short-term NO2 and CO AQSs
were not predicted to be exceeded at any of the modelled receptor locations in any of
the modelled scenarios.

5.39

The ES addendum concluded that the proposal would have negligible effect on air
quality for both the CHP and SDEN schemes. The council's Environmental Health
Department raised no concern regarding air quality. As such, no objection is raised on
these grounds.

Page 29

Agenda Item 4

5.40

Ground Conditions:

5.41

Ground conditions were considered within the original 2009 ES and 2016 application.
In addition planning condition no.39 (of C2014/687500), condition no.40 (of
C2009/62175), condition no 40 (of C2014/68760) and no. 40 (of C2009/62175) have
been approved by the Council which sought details in relation to ground investigation
and remediation of the site.

5.42

Extensive ground investigation, risk assessment and remediation have been
undertaken on site between 2012 and 2016. The ES addendum states that for the
installation of the pipes required to facilitate the energy network, any soil movement
will be carefully considered to ensure that soils remain in a location where they do not
pose a risk to future occupiers or controlled waters.

5.43

Post completion of the remedial works, the risk to sensitive receptors has been
removed. It is acknowledged that residual contamination remains beneath the clean
capping layer, buildings and areas of hardstanding, however, this is considered to
pose a negligible risk of exposure to future site occupiers. Future works involved with
the installation of the pipes and road network will be mitigated by a robust risk
assessment and personal protection equipment, therefore reducing the risk to future
site works as negligible.

5.44

As such, it is considered that, as remediation was completed to mitigate risk to
controlled water and human health within the context of the proposed development
layout and has been largely completed, the development of the proposed pipework will
not give rise to any potentially significant effects in relation to contaminated land.
Environmental Health have raised no objection on these grounds.

5.45

Hydrology and Drainage:

5.46

Hydrology and Drainage were considered within the original 2009 ES. A Flood Risk
Assessment with associated Drainage Strategy was previously approved as part of the
2009 application. Drainage designs were subsequently submitted to approve the
associated planning condition (38) which stated that:
“Development shall not begin until a surface water drainage scheme based on
sustainable drainage principles and an assessment of hydrological and
hydrogeological context of the development has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the local planning authority. The scheme should achieve surface water
discharge at the greenfield runoff rate for flood events up to and including the 1 in 100
year plus climate change critical duration storm event. The scheme shall subsequently
be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is
completed.”

5.47

A number of Sustainable Urban Drainage (SUDS) features were proposed within the
approved scheme to attenuate surface water and restrict discharge to an existing
outfall from the site.

Agenda Item 4

Page 30

5.48

The ES addendum confirms that the installation of underground pipes and cabling
require similar construction techniques to the installation of standard utilities and
drains. The depth of excavation required is not considered to be greater depth than
standard drainage installation depth, and installation methods will be similar.

5.49

In relation to the proposed foul and surface drainage strategy, the proposal would have
a negligible effect on the construction of a sustainable drainage system for the site.
Given the nature of the site layout, it is considered that there is sufficient space to
accommodate the requirements of both systems and this is considered to have a
negligible effect in an environmental context.

5.50

The Council’s Flood Risk Officer has raised no objection to the proposal.

5.51

Noise and Vibration:

5.52

A noise assessment was submitted to accompany the original ES in 2009, and a
further assessment was carried out in 2016, which assessed the construction and
operational effects of the development. A baseline noise survey was undertaken to
quantify the existing noise levels in the surrounding area. A combination of short and
long-term measurements (for a minimum 24 hours) were undertaken at the site
boundary and the nearest identified receptors. Those baseline levels have been used
to inform the pipeline construction assessment.

5.53

During the operational phase, the pipelines are to be positioned below ground level
and would not introduce significant noise levels or generate an increase in road traffic
movements. The focus of the assessment was limited to the impacts of construction
activity during the installation of the pipelines.

5.54

The construction noise assessment for the site has been carried out in accordance
with the guidance given in BS5228:2009+A1:2014 “Code of practice for noise and
vibration control on construction and open sites”, Part 1 – Noise.

5.55

This standard sets out a method for predicting noise from construction works. The
method considers amongst other factors, the noise emission level of the plant, %
on-time, separation distance between source and receiver, the effect of the intervening
topography and structures.

5.56

Noise predictions based on indicative movement vehicles of plant and other equipment
to the requirements of BS 5228-1 have been undertaken. The predictions are then
compared against the threshold criteria which have been informed by the previous
baseline monitoring. A computer noise model of the site has been constructed using
SoundPLAN (v7.4) noise prediction software.

5.57

The majority of the construction activities would be undertaken during daytime core
hour periods between 07:00 to 19:00; a threshold criterion has therefore taken into
account this time period. Similar construction works have been used to inform this
assessment. It was assessed that likely activities would be split into various phases of
work with differences in plant and ontimes. Those activities include site preparation,

Page 31

Agenda Item 4

excavation/ shallow trenching, pipe laying and backfilling and compaction.
5.58

Noise emission areas have followed the line of the pipework. They provide a worse
case assessment and modelling locations were undertaken at both SDEN and CHP
on-site connections. The construction works would be undertaken in the same areas,
irrespective of which option is preferred; and in noise terms the difference between the
two is considered to be insignificant.

5.59

As such, it is considered that the proposal would have negligible noise impacts to the
surrounding properties.

5.60

The proposed operation of the energy centre would not produce any distinct noise
above the existing background noise levels as the plant would be housed within a
sealed unit which would provide a high level of noise mitigation.

5.61

The council's Environmental Health Service have not raised objection to the proposal,
subject to a condition controlling dust and noise during the installation of the
underground pipework.

5.62

Summary:

5.63

The application is for the installation of underground heating pipes, electrical cabling,
communication cabling and associated works to allow transfer of hot water and high
speed data through a decentralised energy network.

5.64

In terms of archaeology, air quality, ground conditions, hydrology and drainage and
noise and vibration, the application has demonstrated by way of an Environmental
Statement addendum that the proposal would have a negligible impact.

5.65

The proposal is considered to be in accordance with the NPPF, the London Plan 2016
and the council's Local Development Framework. As such the proposed development
is acceptable in principle, however, this is subject to the consideration of all other
relevant policy guidance and material considerations which are considered below.

5.66

Design Quality:

5.67

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states at paragraph 64 that
“Permission should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way
it functions.” Policy BP12 of the adopted Core Planning Strategy, policy DM1 of the
Site Development Policies DPD and SPD14 ‘Urban Design’ requires development to
respect or reinforce the character and identity of the area and avoid developments
which do not integrate well into the surroundings.

5.68

The proposal includes the installation of underground pipes and cabling ducts below
ground and will not be visible. Therefore, the proposal would not impact on the
character and appearance of the surrounding area and are in accordance with the
above policies.

Agenda Item 4

Page 32

5.69

Impact on Neighbours:

5.70

Policy DM2 of the Site Development Policies DPD states that the Council will not grant
planning permission for any development that adversely affects the amenities of future
occupiers or those currently occupying adjoining or nearby properties or has an
unacceptable impact on the surrounding area.

5.71

The site is bounded by residential properties to Hackbridge Road and London Road
frontages. Two former office buildings to the west at Bridge House and Vulcan House
within Restmor way, have received prior approval consent to convert to residential
dwellings and it would appear that these consents are currently being implemented.

5.72

As discussed above, an ES addendum was submitted with the application which
concluded that the proposal would be installed underground and would not be visible
once the approved development has been complete. It should be noted that there
would be negligible impact through construction phase once the pipes and cabling are
active.

5.73

As such, it is considered that the proposal would not have an unacceptable impact on
adjoining residents in terms of privacy, outlook and noise and disturbance.

5.74

Highways:

5.75

Policy BP10 of the Core Planning Strategy states that developments should seek to
reduce the need to travel, advocate the use of sustainable modes of transport and
reduce the impact of traffic on residential areas. Policy DM22 ‘Parking’ of the Site
Development Policies DPD seeks to ensure that provision is made for off-street
parking for new proposals in line with the Council’s maximum car parking standards.
The policy continues that planning permission will not be granted for development that
is likely to result in increased on-street parking where it would adversely affect traffic
flows, bus movements, road safety and the amenities of local residents and the local
environment.

5.76

The proposed access and layout of the wider Felnex site was approved under
application ref: C2016/73625/OUT and the proposed installation of the pipeline and
cabling would not modify the approved access or layout.

5.77

Comments received from the Highways Engineer will be reported orally.

5.78

Sustainability:

5.79

Core Strategy Policy PMP7 states that the Council will promote Hackbridge as a
sustainable neighbourhood where the highest standards of sustainable design and
construction are embraced as well as the creation of a ‘Low Carbon Zone’ within the
neighbourhood.

5.80

Policy DM6 relates to climate change mitigation and part c) of the policy requires that

Page 33

Agenda Item 4

proposed developments are designed to connect to a DEN particularly in Hackbridge.
The proposed DEN at Felnex is central to ensuring that policy DM6 can be complied
with at Felnex and to ensure that carbon dioxide emissions are minimised in line with
the London Plan's strategic targets for reducing emissions and promoting DEN.
5.81

The Council's Sustainability Officer raises no objection to the proposed layout of the
underground heating pipes for either alternative energy supply options. Both of these
provide a dedicated pipe which will run northwards from the energy centre to
Hackbridge Road in order to facilitate the potential expansion to other developments
within in Hackbridge and beyond.

5.82

This ‘future-proofing’ is welcomed and is in accordance with the existing planning
conditions for the wider site and Section 106 agreement which requires the developer
to make ‘reasonable endeavours’ to connect to a future area wide-network.

5.83

As such, it is considered that the proposal would comply with development plan policy
DM6.

5.84

Trees:

5.85

Policy DM1 of the Site Development Policies DPD states that development shall make
suitable provision for high quality hard and soft landscape treatments around buildings.
Landscape proposals will need to ensure that new development is integrated and
positively contributes to or enhances the streetscene. Policy DM17 seeks to create,
conserve or enhance biodiversity and improve access to nature by sustaining and,
where possible improving the quality and extent of natural habitat enhancing
biodiversity in green spaces and among developments.

5.86

Under application C2016/73672/ARM, it was considered that the trees on the site were
not considered to be of a sufficient quality or amenity value to be considered a
constraint on development. The loss of the existing trees was considered acceptable in
the context of the significant benefits the scheme will provide both in terms of new tree
planting both to the London Road frontage and within the site as well as the significant
improvement to the existing site in landscape terms through public open space and
private amenity space.

5.87

Comments from the Tree Officer will be reported orally.

5.88

Planning Obligations:

5.89

Community Infrastructure Levy

5.90

The Mayor of London’s and the Council's CIL are not payable in this instance as it only
applies to the provision of housing and convenience retail developments.

6.0

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

6.1

The proposal is considered to be in accordance with the National Planning Policy

Agenda Item 4

Page 34

Framework, the London Plan 2016 and the council's Local Development Framework
and the proposal would comply with Policy DM6 which relates to Climate Change
Mitigation and specifically part (c)(ii) of the policy which requires proposed
developments be designed to connect to a Decentralised Energy Network (DEN)
particularly in Hackbridge.
6.2

The proposal would not result in a loss of outlook or privacy and no significant harm
would be caused through noise or disturbance.

6.3

For the reasons outlined in the report, it is recommended that planning permission be
granted.

Background Papers: C2016/75591/FUL
Drawings and other documents can be viewed on line –
1) Go to page: http://gis.sutton.gov.uk/FASTWEB/welcome.asp
2) Enter Planning Application Number: C
 2016/75591
3) Click on Search and View Current Applications
4) Click on View Plans & Documents

Page 35

Agenda Item 4

G


Barratt Homes
BDW Kent 88 Main Road
Sundridge
TN14 6ER

C2016/75591/FUL

DRAFT
WARNING: It is in your interests to ensure you obtain the approval of the Local
Planning Authority, where the conditions require that to occur. Failure to comply
with the following conditions may lead to enforcement action to secure compliance.
FIRST SCHEDULE
Felnex Trading Estate 190 LONDON ROAD Hackbridge SM6 7EL
Installation of underground heating pipes, electrical cabling, communication cabling and
associated works to allow transfer of hot water and high speed data through a
decentralised energy network.
SECOND SCHEDULE
(1) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date hereof.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as
amended.
(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: S0508C, S0508BEMS087-TS-0-1-100 Rev 9, AA5938-2102
Rev A, SK004 Rev A, 091403-BAR-K-S78-L0C01, 9044/01 1/2, 9044/01 2/2,
091403-BAR--01 Rev C, Planning Statement, Environmental Statement Addendum,

Agenda Item 4

Page 36

Construction Method Statement, Air Quality Statement, Schedule of Trees and Tree
Survey.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
(3) The development shall not begin until a Construction Method Statement, to include
details of:
(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors;
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials;
(c) storage of plant and materials;
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management);
(e) provision of boundary hoarding, behind any visibility zones;
(f) construction traffic routing;
(g) hours of operation;
(h) means to control dust;
(i) means to control noise;
(k) means to prevent deposition of mud on the highway;
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development shall thereafter be constructed in accordance with the approved
statement.
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not interfere with the free
flow of traffic and conditions of safety on the public highway.
(4) If, during development, contamination not previously identified is found to be present
at the site then no further development (unless otherwise agreed in writing with the
Local Planning Authority) shall be carried out until the developer has submitted, and
obtained written approval from the Local Planning Authority for, a remediation strategy
detailing how this unsuspected contamination shall be dealt with. The remediation
strategy shall be implemented as approved, verified and reported to the satisfaction of
the Local Planning Authority.
Further, and in accordance with our letter reference SL/2014/112763/11-L01 dated 19
May 2016, we request additional groundwater monitoring during these groundworks to
assess whether there is any effect on groundwater quality from remobilized potential
contaminants.
Reason: There is always the potential for unexpected contamination to be identified
during development groundworks. We should be consulted should any contamination
be identified that could present an unacceptable risk to Controlled Waters (the site is
located within SPZ1).
INFORMATIVES.
(1) This approval only grants permission under section 57 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990. Further approval or consent may be required by other legislation, in
particular the Building Regulations and you should contact Building Control on 020 8770
5000 before proceeding with the work.
(2) The permission hereby granted confers no rights on the applicant to encroach upon,
extend over or otherwise enter upon property not in his ownership for any purposes

Page 37

Agenda Item 4

connected with the implementation of this planning permission.
(3) The submitted application complied with the relevant planning policies and Sutton
Council has accordingly granted planning permission.
(4) The developer must ensure that their proposal, both during construction and after
completion of works on site, does not:
• encroach onto Network Rail land
• affect the safety, operation or integrity of the company’s railway and its infrastructure
• undermine its support zone
• damage the company’s infrastructure
• place additional load on cuttings
• adversely affect any railway land or structure
• over-sail or encroach upon the air-space of any Network Rail land
• cause to obstruct or interfere with any works or proposed works or Network Rail
development both now and in the future.
The developer should comply with the following comments and requirements for the
safe operation of the railway and the protection of Network Rail's adjoining land.
(5) The development must ensure any future maintenance can be conducted solely on
the applicant’s land. The applicant must ensure that any construction and any
subsequent maintenance can be carried out to any proposed buildings or structures
without adversely affecting the safety of, or encroaching upon Network Rail’s adjacent
land and air-space, and therefore all/any building should be situated at least 2 metres
(3m for overhead lines and third rail) from Network Rail’s boundary. The reason for the
2m (3m for overhead lines and third rail) stand off requirement is to allow for
construction and future maintenance of a building and without requirement for access to
the operational railway environment which may not necessarily be granted or if granted
subject to railway site safety requirements and special provisions with all associated
railway costs charged to the applicant. Any less than 2m (3m for overhead lines and
third rail) and there is a strong possibility that the applicant (and any future resident) will
need to utilise Network Rail land and air-space to facilitate works. The applicant /
resident would need to receive approval for such works from the Network Rail Asset
Protection Engineer, the applicant / resident would need to submit the request at least
20 weeks before any works were due to commence on site and they would be liable for
all costs (e.g. all possession costs, all site safety costs, all asset protection presence
costs). However, Network Rail is not required to grant permission for any third party
access to its land. No structure/building should be built hard-against Network Rail’s
boundary as in this case there is an even higher probability of access to Network Rail
land being required to undertake any construction / maintenance works.
Equally any structure/building erected hard against the boundary with Network Rail will
impact adversely upon our maintenance teams’ ability to maintain our boundary fencing
and boundary treatments.
(6) Storm/surface water must not be discharged onto Network Rail’s property or into
Network Rail’s culverts or drains except by agreement with Network Rail. Suitable
drainage or other works must be provided and maintained by the Developer to prevent
surface water flows or run-off onto Network Rail’s property. Proper provision must be
made to accept and continue drainage discharging from Network Rail’s property; full
details to be submitted for approval to the Network Rail Asset Protection Engineer.

Agenda Item 4

Page 38

Suitable foul drainage must be provided separate from Network Rail’s existing drainage.
Soakaways, as a means of storm/surface water disposal must not be constructed
near/within 10 / 20 metres of Network Rail’s boundary or at any point which could
adversely affect the stability of Network Rail’s property. After the completion and
occupation of the development, any new or exacerbated problems attributable to the
new development shall be investigated and remedied at the applicants’ expense.
(7) All operations, including the use of cranes or other mechanical plant working
adjacent to Network Rail’s property, must at all times be carried out in a “fail safe”
manner such that in the event of mishandling, collapse or failure, no plant or materials
are capable of falling within 3.0m of the boundary with Network Rail.
(8) Any scaffold which is to be constructed within 10 metres of the railway boundary
fence must be erected in such a manner that at no time will any poles over-sail the
railway and protective netting around such scaffold must be installed. The
applicant/applicant’s contractor must consider if they can undertake the works and
associated scaffold/access for working at height within the footprint of their property
boundary.
(9) Where vibro-compaction/displacement piling plant is to be used in development,
details of the use of such machinery and a method statement should be submitted for
the approval of the Network Rail’s Asset Protection Engineer prior to the
commencement of works and the works shall only be carried out in accordance with the
approved method statement.
(10) In view of the nature of the development, it is essential that the developer provide
(at their own expense) and thereafter maintain a substantial, trespass proof fence along
the development side of the existing boundary fence, to a minimum height of 1.8
metres. The 1.8m fencing should be adjacent to the railway boundary and the
developer/applicant should make provision for its future maintenance and renewal
without encroachment upon Network Rail land. Network Rail’s existing fencing / wall
must not be removed or damaged and at no point either during construction or after
works are completed on site should the foundations of the fencing or wall or any
embankment therein, be damaged, undermined or compromised in any way. Any
vegetation on Network Rail land and within Network Rail’s boundary must also not be
disturbed. Any fencing installed by the applicant must not prevent Network Rail from
maintaining its own fencing/boundary treatment.
(11) Any lighting associated with the development (including vehicle lights) must not
interfere with the sighting of signalling apparatus and/or train driver's vision on
approaching trains. The location and colour of lights must not give rise to the potential
for confusion with the signalling arrangements on the railway. The developers should
obtain Network Rail’s Asset Protection Engineer’s approval of their detailed proposals
regarding lighting.
(12) The potential for any noise/ vibration impacts caused by the proximity between the
proposed development and any existing railway must be assessed in the context of the
National Planning Policy Framework which hold relevant national guidance information.
The current level of usage may be subject to change at any time without notification
including increased frequency of trains, night time train running and heavy freight trains.

Page 39

Agenda Item 4

(13) Where a proposal calls for hard standing area / parking of vehicles area near the
boundary with the operational railway, Network Rail would recommend the installation of
a highways approved vehicle incursion barrier or high kerbs to prevent vehicles
accidentally driving or rolling onto the railway or damaging lineside fencing. Network
Rail strongly recommends the developer contacts Asset Protection Sussex
AssetProtectionSussex@networkrail.co.uk prior to any works commencing on site, and
also to agree an Asset Protection Agreement with us to enable approval of detailed
works. More information can also be obtained from our website at
www.networkrail.co.uk/aspx/1538.aspx.
(14) - The best practical means available in accordance with British Standard Code of
Practice 5228-1:2009 + A1:2014 shall be employed at all times to minimise the
emission of noise from the site;
- The operation of the site equipment generating noise and other nuisance causing
activities, audible at the site boundaries or in nearby residential properties shall only be
carried out between the hours of 0800 - 1800 Mondays-Fridays, 0800 -1300 Saturdays
and at no time on Sundays or Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority;
- Vehicular access to adjoining and opposite premises shall not be impeded;
- All vehicles, plant and machinery associated with such works shall be stood and
operated within the curtilage of the site only;
- A suitable and sufficient means of suppressing dust must be provided and maintained.
Reason: To ensure that and occupiers of neighbouring premises do not suffer a loss of
amenity by reason of nuisance and pollution

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 41

Agenda Item 4

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 43

Agenda Item 5

PLANNING COMMITTEE - Date: 22 February 2017
Report of the Executive Head for Economic Development, Planning and Sustainability.
Ref: A2016/75813/FUL

Site:
Proposal:

Applicant:
Agent:

WARD: A04 / CHEAM

Time Taken:
14 weeks, 5 days

14, The Avenue, Cheam. SM2 7QB.
Erection of a 3-bedroomed detached bungalow with roof accommodation at rear
of garden, and erection of a rear boundary wall up to a maximum height of 1.8m
and retaining wall up to a maximum height of 550mm. Formation of a
hard-standing at front and vehicle access onto Shirley Avenue, provision of two
car parking spaces, and cycle and refuse storage.
Mr Peter Furst
Mr Scott Ellis

Recommendation:
GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION
Reason for Report to Committee:
The application was de-delegated by Councillor Ramsey and has more than 10 objections.
Summary of why the proposal is acceptable:
●

●

●
●

The garden land is considered not to be of high ecological value and does not form an
important contribution to the character of the surrounding area, and the development
is acceptable in principle.
The proposed dwelling would be of an appropriate scale and mass, and would
incorporate key features characteristic of the Burton Estates Area of Special Local
Character and would be in keeping with the prevailing form of development within the
ASLC and would result in an improvement to the streetscene of Shirley Avenue.
The proposal would not result in any adverse impact on the amenity of the neighbour
occupiers.
The proposal would not result in adverse impacts on the highway network or car
parking.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Site and surroundings:

1.2

The application site is 14 The Avenue which comprises of a two storey single family
dwelling house located on the south side of The Avenue. 12 and 14 The Avenue are
the only dwellings after fork in the road, where Shirley Avenue splits from The
Avenue, whose gardens back directly on to Shirley Avenue.

1.3

The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature, characterised by
detached dwellings, many of which are two storey in nature, but there are examples

Page 44

Agenda Item 5

of bungalows with roof accommodation within the vicinity of the site and throughout
the ASLC.
1.4

Site specific designation:
●

Burton Estates Area of Special Local Character

1.5

Relevant Planning History:

1.6

The donor dwelling has had a number of householder applications. The application
site has been subject to the following planning applications.

1.7

71/8026 – Erection of a single-storey extension was granted planning permission on
18 October 1971.

1.8

77/16188 – Erection of a single storey rear extension was granted planning
permission on 18 April 1977.

1.9

79/18695 – Erection of a part one, part two storey flank extension was granted on 1
March 1979.

2.0

APPLICATION PROPOSALS

2.1

Details of Proposal:

2.2

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a 3-bedroomed detached bungalow
with roof accommodation and erection of a rear boundary wall up to a maximum
height of 1.8m and retaining wall up to a maximum height of 550mm. Formation of a
hard-standing at front and vehicle access onto Shirley Avenue, provision a 0.5 metre
front boundary wall with piers of up to 1 metre and two car parking spaces, along with
cycle and refuse storage.

2.3

The proposal would result in the subdivision of the rear garden of 14 The Avenue,
with the dwelling proposed to face on to Shirley Avenue. The parcel of land
proposed for the new dwelling would measure approximately 29.2 metres along the
southern boundary with 5 Shirley Avenue, and approximately 17 metres along the
northern boundary with 12 The Avenue.

2.4

The proposed dwelling would have a ‘L’ shaped footprint with a small rear projection
on the southern side of the site. The building would measure 11.1 metres at its
deepest point and 14.6 metres wide.

2.5

The proposed dwelling would have a dual pitched roof design, with a gable end
feature to the front elevation with a bay window. Within the front elevation two
dormer windows are proposed to provide light and accommodation to the living
space at first floor level. A ground floor bay window would be located on the northern
end of the front elevation.

2.6

To the rear elevation the rear projection would have a hipped roof design. A dormer
and three rooflights are proposed within the rear roof slope. At ground floor level two
sets of French doors are proposed to the living and dining areas.

2.7

To the northern side elevation, no windows are proposed, with a set of doors

Page 45

Agenda Item 5

proposed within the rear projection which would serve the kitchen. To the southern
side elevation a roof light is proposed within the side roof slope, with two windows
and a door proposed at ground floor level which would serve a utility room and
bathroom.
2.8

The finishes to the building are proposed to be red/brown tiles to the roof, with similar
hung tiling to the gable ends. At ground floor level the building would be finished in a
cream render.

2.9

The proposed building would have a gross internal floor space of 161m2. The private
amenity space provided would be approximately 113m2.

2.10

Two accesses are proposed on to Shirley Avenue, with bonded gravel hardstanding
proposed to the front garden of the dwelling to provide off-street car parking. A 1.8
metre high wall would be built along the proposed boundary with 14 The Avenue,
with a 1.8 metre high close board fencing proposed along the side boundaries with
12 The Avenue and 5 Shirley Avenue. A 0.5 metre high front boundary wall with
piers measuring 1 metre are proposed.

2.11

Refuse storage would be to the side of the dwelling, with a small patio area proposed
to the rear.

2.12

Significant amendments to application since submitted:

2.13

Amendments have been made to the proposed site plan to show the correct extent of
the root protection area of the trees found on site along with a method statement in
relation to the building of the rear boundary wall with the root protection area of a
retained tree.

3.0

PUBLICITY

3.1

Adjoining Occupiers Notified

3.2

Method of Notification:

3.3

Letters were sent to 8 adjoining residents in The Avenue and Shirley Avenue dated
29 November 2016 and a site notice posted within the vicinity of the site dated 5
December 2016.

3.4

Number of Letters Received:

3.5

26 letters of objection and were received from various addresses within South
Cheam.

3.6

Material Objections:
●
●
●
●
●

The proposed dwelling would be out of character with the area.
The proposal is development on back garden land and contrary to policy
DM30.
The proposed dwelling would not respect the existing building line.
The subdivision of the plot would result in a gardens which would be contrary to
the prevailing form of development.
The proposal would be an incongruous addition to the streetscene.

Page 46

Agenda Item 5
●
●
●
●

The proposed dwelling would be overbearing and overly dominant when
viewed from the adjoining properties.
The proposal would represent overdevelopment of the site.
The proposal is contrary to policy DM4.
Noise and disturbance during construction.

3.7

Official Consultation

3.8

Internal:

3.9

Senior Highways Engineer:

3.10

No objection subject to a condition securing a construction logistic plan and a
conditions to secure cycle storage.

3.11

Sustainability Officer

3.12

The Sustainability Officer raised no objection subject to the inclusion of conditions
securing an implementation of the submitted Energy Statement, SUDS and water
efficiency measures.

3.13

Biodiversity Officer

3.14

The Biodiversity Officer had no objection to the proposal.

3.15

The Principal Tree Officer

3.16

The Principal Tree Officer raised no objection to the proposal.

3.17

Councillor Representation:

3.18

The application was de-delegated by Councillor Ramsey on the 16th December 2016
on the grounds that development is contrary to policy DM30 and would result in a
rear garden of 14 The Avenue being significantly smaller and not in keeping with the
character of the area.

4.0

MATERIAL PLANNING POLICIES

4.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that when
determining a planning application, regard is to be had to the development plan, and
the determination shall be made in accordance with the development plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan for the London
Borough of Sutton comprises the following documents:
●
●
●

4.2

The London Plan 2016
The Core Planning Strategy 2009
The Site Development Policies DPD 2012

Also a material consideration in determining planning applications are:
● National Planning Policy Framework
● National Planning Policy Guidance
● Adopted London Borough of Sutton Supplementary Planning Guidance
documents.

Page 47
●
●
●

Draft Local Plan
Human Rights Act 2008
Equality Act 2010

4.3

Material Planning Policies in Determining this Application

4.4

London Plan
● 3.3 Increase Housing Supply
● 3.4 Optimising housing potential
● 3.5 Quality and design of housing development
● 3.9 Mixed and balanced communities
● 5.1 Climate change mitigation
● 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
● 5.3 Sustainable design and construction
● 5.7 Renewable energy
● 5.13 Sustainable drainage
● 5.15 Water use and supplies
● 6.1 Integrating transport and development – strategic approach
● 6.3 Assessing transport capacity
● 6.9 Cycling
● 7.1 Lifetime Neighbourhoods
● 7.2 An inclusive Environment
● 7.3 Secured by Design
● 7.4 Local Character
● 7.6 Architecture
● 7.19 Biodiversity and Access to Nature
● 8.3 Community Infrastructure Levy

4.5

Core Strategy :
● BP1 Housing Density
● BP6 One Planet Living
● BP7 Flood Risk and Climate Change Adaption
● BP12 Good Urban Design and Heritage
● PMP1 Housing Provision
● PMP2 Suburban Heartlands

4.6

Site Development Policies:
● DM1 Character and Design
● DM2 Protecting Amenity
● DM3 Enhancing the Streetscene and Public Realm
● DM4 Historic Environment
● DM5 Sustainable Design and Construction
● DM6 Climate Change Mitigation
● DM7 Flood Risk
● DM8 Climate Change Adaption
● DM17 Biodiversity, Habitats and Species
● DM19 Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
● DM20 Assessing the Transport Impact of New Development
● DM21 New Development and the Highway Network
● DM22 Parking
● DM29 Housing Standards
● DM30 Housing and Back Garden Land

Agenda Item 5

Page 48

Agenda Item 5
4.7

5.0
5.1

Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents:
● SPD14 Creating Locally Distinctive Places
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The principal considerations (including whether any material planning objections
have been reasonably addressed) in relation to this application are:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Principle
Design Quality and Impact on Street Scene
Impact on Neighbours
Layout
Biodiversity
Highways and Parking
Sustainability
CIL

5.2

Principle:

5.3

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that “at the heart of the
NPPF is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.”

5.4

The NPPF requires the Council to make the most efficient use of land by maximising
the re-use of previously developed land and the conversion of existing buildings.
Core policy BP1 states that the Council will ensure that new housing development
will make the most efficient use of land in accordance with the London Plan having
regard to, amongst other things, local character and transport accessibility.

5.5

The NPPF does not include private residential gardens in the definition of previously
developed land, often referred to as ‘brownfield’ sites. It is considered that the NPPF
does not introduce a presumption against the development of ‘private residential
gardens’ as a matter of principle but, by excluding private residential gardens from
the definition of ‘previously developed land’ elevates the status of private residential
gardens for those developing policy and determining planning applications.

5.6

It should be noted that policy DM30 of the Site Development Policies DPD places a
greater emphasis on controlling development on back garden land and states that
the Council will not grant planning permission for the development of back garden
land where the site either individually, or as part of a larger street block, makes an
important contribution to the character and appearance of the surrounding area
and/or adversely affects the amenities of future occupiers or those currently
occupying adjoining and/or nearby properties and/or the garden land is of ecological
value.

5.7

Policy DM30 of the Site Development Policies DPD is considered to be in generally
conformity with the meaning and intent of the NPPF as it requires the Council to give
even greater emphasis to how the development of private residential gardens will
impact on the character and appearance of a particular area.

5.8

The proposal would result in the subdivision of the garden land of 14 The Avenue,
and the erection of a dwelling fronting Shirley Avenue. It should be noted that the
site is just east of a fork in the road, where Shirley Avenue splits from The Avenue.
12 and 14 The Avenue are the only dwellings on the south side of the road whose

Page 49

Agenda Item 5

gardens back on to Shirley Avenue. The proposal would result in an additional
dwelling fronting on to Shirley Avenue. The garden land is in residential land use.
5.9

The proposal would provide an additional dwelling within a reasonably sized plot.
The policy above states the Council should be looking to make the most efficient use
of land, subject to its development plan policies and other material considerations. It
is considered that the rear garden does not make an important contribution to the
character of the area or as a larger street block and the proposed development does
not result in adverse impacts to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers or future
occupiers. The Council’s Biodiversity Officer has assessed the proposal and raised
no objection as so it is considered that the garden land is not of high ecological
value. It is therefore considered that for the reasons above, the principle of the
proposed development is acceptable, subject to other development plan policies and
material considerations.

5.10

Design Quality and Impact on Street Scene:
Policy BP12 and PMP2 of the adopted Core Planning Strategy and policies DM1,
DM3 of the Site Development Policies DPD and SPD14-Urban Design seek to
ensure that proposals are sympathetic to the appearance of the existing building,
and that all development complements and improves the character of the area and
street scene.

5.12

Policy DM4 of the Site Development Policies DPD states that “the Council will grant
planning permission in areas of special local character that respects the key
elements of that contribute to the character of the area.”

5.13

The Burton Estate Area of Special Local Character is residential in character and
predominantly comprises of two storey detached dwellings, which site within
relatively spacious plots. The ASLC is characterised by dwellings of an arts and
crafts style, though there is some diversity in the architectural detailing of the
dwellings.

5.14

Whilst this is the predominant building type within the ASLC is of two storey
dwellings, it should be noted that there are examples of dwellings with catslide or
chalet style roofs which terminate at first floor level, with accommodation within the
roof space. One can be found directly opposite the application site at 27 The
Avenue. It should also be noted that the dwellings within the ASLC which exhibit this
style of roof typically have front facing dormers.

5.15

The site is located to the east of the fork in the road from which Shirley Avenue splits
from The Avenue and 12 and 14 The Avenue are the only dwellings whose rear
garden fronts Shirley Avenue. This makes 14 The Avenue unique in that it has a
significantly larger rear garden than the dwellings to the east of it on either Shirley
Avenue or The Avenue.

5.16

The existing streetscene of this part of Shirley Avenue is of a 1 metres retaining wall
with panel board fencing for the boundary treatment of the rear garden of 14 The
Avenue, with the fencing and a hedge forming the rest of 12 The Avenue’s boundary
treatment along Shirley Avenue.

5.17

It is acknowledged that the proposed dwelling would have a smaller rear garden than
the neighbouring dwellings, however the depth of the proposed plot measured along

Agenda Item 5

Page 50

the southern boundary of the site would be approximately 4 metres shallower than
the northern boundary of 5 Shirley Avenue. It is also worth noting the irregular shape
of the plot of 12 The Avenue. For these reasons it is considered that whilst the depth
of the rear garden is smaller, it is not significantly small than the prevailing pattern of
development within the surrounding area, and as such it would not result in
significant harm to the character of the surrounding area considering the location of
the site near the fork in the road.
5.18

It is also acknowledged that the proposal would be the only bungalow on Shirley
Avenue. Whilst this is the case, it should be noted that there are examples of similar
bungalows within the immediate area, especially at 27 The Avenue. The proposed
bungalow would retain key elements and features of the Burton Estates ASLC such
as the hung tiling, first floor front facing dormers, and bay windows. Taking into
consideration the existing streetscene of a 1 metre retaining wall with panel board
fencing above it, the proposed dwelling is considered to result in an improvement to
this particular stretch of the streetscene of Shirley Avenue and would contribute
positively to the character of the area whilst complementing and retaining key
features of the ASLC.

5.19

The proposed dwelling would be set-in from the side boundaries of the site by 1
metre on the northern boundary and 0.8 metres on the southern boundary. The
scale and massing of the propose dwelling in relation to the size of the plot is
considered not to result in overdevelopment of the site, but results in reasonably
sized bungalow within a reasonably sized plot. The donor property would also retain
a significantly large enough rear garden, which would still be longer than the
relatively shallow plots 16 and 18 The Avenue. The proposal is therefore considered
to be in keeping with the prevailing form of development within the area.

5.20

The orientation and siting of the proposed dwelling within the plot would make it
appear that the dwelling is forward of the building line of this side of Shirley Avenue.
It is worth noting that there is a bend in Shirley Avenue, where the building line
changes as does the orientation of the dwellings. This happens between 14 and 16
Shirley Avenue and 9 and 11 Shirley Avenue. Considering that the building line that
is raised by the objectors relates to only three dwellings on the east side of Shirley
Avenue before the bend in the road and the small scale of the proposed dwelling, its
orientation and siting within the plot are considered to be acceptable and would not
cause significant harm the character of the ASLC or the streetscene.

5.21

The front boundary treatment proposed would be a low level wall measuring 0.5
metres in height, with piers measuring 1 metre in height. This type of boundary
treatment could typically be built under permitted development rights and are
considered to be acceptable and would not harm the character of the ASLC or
streetscene.

5.22

A condition is recommended to secure samples of the external materials and finishes
to the proposed dwelling to ensure that these fit the pallet of the Burton Estates
ASLC.

5.23

For the reasons above it is considered that the scale and massing of the proposed
dwelling as well as its orientation and siting would not result in harm to the character
of the ASLC, and would result in an improvement in the streetscene of this particular
stretch of Shirley Avenue. The detailed design of the dwelling would retain key
elements and features of the ASLC and therefore would not result in harm to the

Page 51

Agenda Item 5

character of the ASCL or streetscene.
5.24

Impact on Neighbours:

5.25

Policy DM2 of the Site Development Policies DPD seeks to protect the amenities of
neighbouring properties in terms of overlooking, loss of outlook and the loss of light
and overshadowing.

5.26

It was noted from the site visit that the dwelling at 5 Shirley Avenue has no side
facing windows at first floor level. The proposal would retain a separation of
approximately 0.8 metres to the boundary and a minimum separation of 4.4 metres to
the side elevation of the dwelling at ground floor level. It is considered that due to
these separation distances and the modest scale of the proposed dwelling that it
would not result in an overbearing development, and would not harm the outlook
from this neighbouring occupier.

5.27

The proposed dwelling would retain a separation of 11 metres at ground floor level to
the single storey rear extension of 14 The Avenue, which contains the kitchen of this
dwelling. The proposed dwelling would retained a separation of approximately 20
metres to the first floor rear elevation of 14 The Avenue. It should also be noted that
the two dwellings would be orientated at an oblique angle to each other and the small
nature of the rear facing dormer should also be noted. It is for these reasons that it is
considered that there would not be significant overlooking over and above what
would be expected in a suburban setting and that the proposal would not result in an
adverse impact on the amenity of this neighbouring occupier.

5.28

The proposed dwelling would retain significant separation distances to 12 The
Avenue and would not directly overlook this plot.

5.29

For the reasons given above, it is considered that the proposal would not result in
unacceptable harm to the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.

5.30

Layout and Landscaping:

5.31

Under Policy DM29 of the Site Development Policies DPD planning permission will
not be granted for new residential accommodation unless: a minimum amount of
private amenity space is provided in line with the standards set out in SPD14 and
sufficient internal space is provided in order to achieve a satisfactory level of
accommodation.

5.32

Minimum space standards for new residential development are found in table 3.3 of
the London Plan. This states that for a two-storey, 6-person, 3-bedroomed dwelling
the minimum gross internal floor space should be 102m2.

5.33

At approximately 161m2 the proposed dwelling would meet the floor space standards
as set out within The London Plan. As such the layout and floor space provided by
the proposal are considered acceptable.

5.34

The proposal indicates that the refuse storage would be to the side of the proposed
dwelling which is considered to be an acceptable arrangement.

5.35

The proposal would provide a total of 113m2 of amenity space. The requirement of
SPD14 states that 70m2 of private amenity space should be provided for a

Agenda Item 5

Page 52

4-bedroomed dwelling house. The London Plan requires 5m2 of private amenity
space for a new dwelling, with another 1m2 for each additional occupant. The
proposal would provide an adequate and satisfactory private amenity space.
5.36

Whilst the drawings show the type of hardstanding to be provided to the front, that
there is provision of a patio to the rear, and that there would be planting to front
garden of the proposal, details have not been submitted. A condition securing details
of the patio as well as hard and soft landscaping is recommended.

5.37

It is therefore considered that the proposed dwelling would provide sufficient and
adequate living standards for future occupiers.

5.38

Biodiversity

5.39

The Council’s Biodiversity Officer assessed the proposal and raised no objection to
the proposal. As such the proposal is considered to be acceptable and the rear
garden land is not of high ecological value.

5.40

Highways and Parking:

5.41

Core Policy BP10 states that the Council will seek to reduce the need to travel,
encourage the use of sustainable modes of transport and reduce the impact of traffic
in residential areas. Policy DM20 states that the ‘Council will assess all new
development applications for their impact on the existing and proposed transport
infrastructure and services and the local environment’. Policy DM22 of the Site
Development Policies DPD states that new developments will be expected to provide
the appropriate amount of car parking necessary in accordance with the Council’s
restraint based maximum parking standards, taking into account public transport
accessibility levels, existing publically available parking provision and usage in the
vicinity of the site and the need to deter unnecessary car use while avoiding over-spill
car parking.

5.42

The Senior Highways Engineer was consulted and raised no objection to the
proposal. The proposal would provide adequate car parking in line with the Council’s
parking standards. It was requested that a condition securing a construction logistics
plan was to be submitted. Considering the scale of the development and its location
it is considered that such a logistics plan would be over onerous and is not required
in this instance.

5.43

A condition securing cycle storage was also requested. Considering that the
proposed development is for a single family dwelling house, sufficient car parking has
been provided and the size of the rear garden, it is considered not necessary to
secure cycle storage for one dwelling.

5.44

For the reasons above it is considered that the proposal would not adversely impact
on highway safety or car parking.

5.45

Sustainability

5.46

Policies BP6 of the Core Planning Strategy and DM6 of the Site Development
Policies DPD require new developments to reduce their carbon dioxide emissions in
order to tackle climate change. In addition policies BP7 of the Core Planning
Strategy and DM7 of the Site Development Policies DPD require new developments

Page 53

Agenda Item 5

to avoid, manage and reduce all sources of potential flood risk and to adapt to the
future impacts of climate change.
5.47

The Council’s Sustainability Officer has assessed the Energy Statement submitted
and raised no objection, subject to a condition ensuring its implementation.
Conditions requiring details of Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems and water
efficiency were also requested and are recommended to ensure the proposed
development meets the requirements of policies DM7 and DM5 of the Site
Development Policies DPD.

5.48

It is therefore considered that the proposal is acceptable in respect to sustainability.

5.49

CIL:

5.50

The London Borough of Sutton introduced its Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
charging schedule in April 2014. New residential units are charged at a rate of £100
per sqm. This is in addition to the Mayor’s CIL charged at £20 per sqm. CIL is
charged on the total net additional floorspace created (measured as Gross Internal
Area). Furthermore, in accordance with the Regulations, any existing buildings on
site in lawful use, which are proposed for a change of use as part of the chargeable
development and have been in continuous use for six months of the previous 36
months on the day planning permission first permits the chargeable development, will
not be charged CIL.

5.51

All Local Authorities are required to index the CIL charges to take account of price
increases between the time when charging schedules setting out an authority's rate
come into force, and the time at which planning permission is granted. In this
instance the London Borough of Sutton’s CIL has been indexed from its adoption in
April 2014 and the Mayoral CIL indexed from its adoption in April 2012.

5.52

There is no demolition proposed and the proposed dwelling would be 161m2.

5.53

The proposed development would be liable for £3,913.09 of Mayoral CIL and
£18,255.65 of London Borough of Sutton CIL.

6.0

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION
The proposed dwelling is considered to be of an acceptable design, massing and
scale, retaining key elements of the ASLC. It would improve the streetscene of the
northeast side of Shirley Avenue, and would not result in harm to the character of the
ASCL.
The proposal would not result in an adverse impact on the amenity of the
neighbouring occupiers.
The proposed dwelling would provide an adequate and satisfactory level of
accommodation and amenity for future occupiers, and would not result in loss of land
of ecological value. The proposal would not result in an adverse impact on car
parking or the highway network.
It is therefore recommended that the proposal be granted planning permission.

Agenda Item 5

Page 54

Background Papers: A2016/75813/FUL
Drawings and other documents can be viewed on line –
1) Go to page: http://gis.sutton.gov.uk/FASTWEB/welcome.asp
2) Enter Planning Application Number: A
 2016/75813
3) Click on Search and View Current Applications
4) Click on View Plans & Documents

Page 55

Agenda Item 5

G


Mr Scott Ellis
10 Berrys Court
West Byfleet
KT14 7BE

A2016/75813/FUL

DRAFT
WARNING: It is in your interests to ensure you obtain the approval of the Local
Planning Authority, where the conditions require that to occur. Failure to comply
with the following conditions may lead to enforcement action to secure compliance.
FIRST SCHEDULE
14 THE AVENUE Cheam SM2 7QB
Erection of a 3-bedroomed detached bungalow with roof accommodation at rear of
garden, and erection of a rear boundary wall up to a maximum height of 1.8m and
retaining wall up to a maximum height of 550mm. Formation of a hard-standing at front
and vehicle access onto Shirley Avenue, provision of two car parking spaces, and cycle
and refuse storage.
SECOND SCHEDULE
(1) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date hereof.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as
amended.
(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: 01, 02 (with larger RPA's), 03, 04, 05.

Agenda Item 5

Page 56

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
(3) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, the details of the
external materials and finishes to the proposed dwelling shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the proposed development maintains and enhances the character of
the surrounding area in accordance with policies DM1 of the Site Development Policies
DPD
(4) Prior to the occupation of the development, details of the soft and hard landscaping
of the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
These details should also include the patio area to the rear and details of the front
boundary treatment.
Reason: To ensure the proposed development maintains and enhances the
surrounding area in accordance with policy DM1 of the Site Development Policies DPD.
(5) Prior to first occupation of the dwelling, ‘as-built’ BRUKL outputs prepared under
the Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing to demonstrate that the dwelling has applied the
Mayor’s energy hierarchy (use less energy, supply energy efficiently and use renewable
energy) to secure at least a 19% reduction in CO 2 emissions below the target emission
rate (TER) based on Part L1A of the 2013 Building Regulations and achieve at least a
10% reduction in total emissions (regulated and unregulated) through on-site renewable
energy generation. . If the development is unable to meet the required reduction in CO 2
emissions through the approved energy strategy, then any shortfall shall be made up
through the application of further sustainability measures unless otherwise approved by
the Local Planning Authority in writing.
Reason: To ensure compliance with policy DM6 of the Site Development Policies DPD
(6) Prior to building work starting on site, a scheme for the management of surface
water run-off must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing
which identifies appropriate site drainage and flood risk management measures,
including SuDS, in order to manage surface water run-off as close to its source as
possible in accordance with the Mayor’s drainage hierarchy. The proposed scheme
shall ensure that the peak run-off rate for the 1 in 100 year 6-hour rainfall event (plus
climate change) will be as close as reasonably practicable to and no more than 3 times
the calculated greenfield run-off rate for the same event, and ensure a minimum
discharge rate of 5 litres per second per outfall
Reason: To ensure compliance with policy DM7 of the Site Development Policies DPD
(7) Prior to first occupation of the dwelling, written confirmation that the approved site
drainage and flood risk management measures, including SuDS, have been
implemented as part of the development as built must be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority and approved in writing. Where different from the approved details,
further evidence must be provided to show that the peak run-off rate for the 1 in 100
year 6-hour rainfall event (plus climate change) will be as close as reasonably
practicable to and no more than 3 times the calculated greenfield run-off rate for the

Page 57

Agenda Item 5

same event, and ensure a minimum discharge rate of 5 litres per second per outfall. All
the measures implemented shall be retained for as long as the development is in
existence
Reason: To comply with Policy DM7 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD.
(8) Prior to first occupation of the dwelling, a completed Water Efficiency Calculator for
New Dwellings must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in
writing to show that internal potable water consumption will be limited to 110 litres per
person per day (l/p/d) based on the Government’s national calculation method for water
efficiency for the purpose of Part G of the Building Regulations. The Water Efficiency
Calculator shall be accompanied by details of the location and type of all appliances or
fittings that use water, the capacity or flow rate of any equipment and any rainwater or
greywater collection systems incorporated as part of the development.
Reason: To comply with Policy DM5 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD
(9) The development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with the
method statement titled 14 The Avenue, Cheam - Reference to T1. Where this cannot
be achieved, then amendments to the method statement shall be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the retention of the mature tree in the rear garden of the site in
accordance with policy DM1 of the Site Development Policies DPD.
INFORMATIVES.
(1) This approval only grants permission under section 57 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990. Further approval or consent may be required by other legislation, in
particular the Building Regulations and you should contact Building Control on 020 8770
5000 before proceeding with the work.
(2) This application has been assessed against the relevant policies of the London Plan
2016, Sutton's Core Planning Strategy 2009 and the Site Development Policies DPD
2012. The proposal is generally in accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) and for this reason planning permission
is granted.
(3) The applicant was provided with pre application advice. As the submitted application
accorded with that advice and complied with the relevant policies Sutton Council has
accordingly granted planning permission.
(4) The Council consider that this permission is liable for a contribution under the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
Please note that if you commence work without giving prior notice of the start date the
CIL charge must be paid immediately.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 59

Agenda Item 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 61

Agenda Item 6

PLANNING COMMITTEE - Date: 22 February 2017
Report of the Executive Head for Economic Development, Planning and Sustainability.
Ref: B2016/75975/FUL

Site:
Proposal:

Applicant:
Agent:

WARD: B05 / SUTTON NORTH

Time Taken:
12 weeks, 5 days

Southfields Court, 180 Sutton Common Road, Sutton, SM1 3JH.
Demolition of existing 22 garages and erection of a detached two storey building
comprising eight 1-bedroomed self contained flats involving cycle and refuse
stores and alterations to existing parking layout.
Woodgavil Properties Ltd

Recommendation:
GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION
Reason for Report to Committee: More than 10 objections contrary to Officer’s
recommendation.
Summary of why the proposal is acceptable:
● The design of the proposed development would be sympathetic to the surrounding area
and would not harm the character of the surrounding area or street scene.
● The proposal would not result in significant harm to the amenity of the neighbouring
occupiers.
● The layout and quality of the proposed living accommodation would be satisfactory and
adequate.
● The proposal would provide adequate car parking in line with the Council’s maximum
standard.
● The proposal would result in addition landscaping of the site which would improve the
biodiversity of the site.
1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Site and surroundings:

1.2

The site is Southfield Court, located on the east of Sutton Common Road, on the
corner, south of Reigate Avenue. The site comprises of a three storey flatted
development with roof accommodation. The building is set back from the road and
has a L shape footprint, with the access to the site from Sutton Common Road. The
access is to the south of the buildings, adjacent to 178 Sutton Common Road, and
leads to a rear parking area which has a series of garages to the rear of the site. To
the front of the site, fronting Sutton Common Road, are a number of significant trees,
as well as some along the boundary with 178 Sutton Common Road.

1.3

The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature. It is characterised by a

Page 62

Agenda Item 6

mixture of three storey flatted developments, and two-storey terraced or
semi-detached dwellings.
1.4

Reigate Avenue is a Transport for London red route.

1.5

Relevant Planning History:

1.6

SUT 24794 – Demolition of existing building and erection of twelve flats with
communal gardens was granted planning permission on 5 October 1960.

1.7

SUT 25785 ’O’ – Erection of a four storey block of 24 1-bed flats with garages and
parking spaces was granted planning permission on 05 October 1961.

1.8

SUT. 26048 – Erection of a block of 24 flats on four floors and 21 lockup garages was
refused planning permission on 21 August 1961.

1.9

SUT 26183 – Erection of a block of 24 flats, 12 with 2-bed and 12 with 1-bed and 21
garages was granted planning permission on 28 September 1961

1.10

07/58106/FUL – Conversion of roof space into three self-contained studio units and
three 1-bed self-contained flats involving increase in height of staircase enclosures
and roof lights on all elevation together with six additional car parking spaces was
allowed at appeal on 28 April 2008.

1.11

16/74279/FUL - Demolition of existing 22 garages and erection of a detached two
storey building comprising eight 1 bedroomed self-contained flats involving cycle and
refuse stores and alterations to existing parking layout was refused planning
permission on 24 June 2016.

1.12

The reason for refusal are as follows:
(1) The proposed development, by reason of the demolition of the existing garages
would result in significant loss in car parking provision on the site for existing and
future occupants and would result in an intensification of use on the site. As such the
proposal would have an adverse impact on the public highway and increasing
pressure to the on-street car parking within the surrounding area and would be
contrary to policy BP10 of the Core Planning Strategy and policy DM22 of the Site
Development Policies DPD.

1.13

Site specific designation:
●

The site has no specific LDF designations.

2.0

APPLICATION PROPOSALS

2.1

Details of Proposal:

Page 63

Agenda Item 6

2.2

Planning permission is sought for the demolition of the existing 22 garages and
erection of a detached two storey building comprising eight 1 bedroomed
self-contained flats involving cycle and refuse stores and alterations to existing parking
layout.

2.3

The proposed building would be two storeys in height, and would have a rectangular
footprint measuring approximately 23.4 metres long and 10.8 metres deep, with two
small recesses to the rear elevations. It would be located to the rear of the site where
the existing garages are located. It would have a 1 metre separation from the
southern boundary of the site, a minimum separation of 4.2 metre to the northern
boundary of the site. A 4 metre separation would be retained to the eastern boundary
of the site. It would be sited 29 metres away from the eastern elevation of the
Southfield Court.

2.4

The proposed building would have an eaves height of 5 metres. The design of the roof
would have three hipped elements connected with a dual pitch element. The tallest
hipped element, located in the centre of the building, would be approximately 8.8
metres in height, with the two hipped elements either side would measure
approximately 7.2 metres in height.

2.5

To the front elevation would be two small entrance porches, with dual pitch roofs over
them. Above these would be a catslide roof with roof light within it. Eight windows are
proposed to the front elevation, four at ground floor level and four at first floor level
serving the living/dining rooms.

2.6

To the side elevations a window at both ground and first floor levels are proposed to
serve kitchens, with a roof light within the larger hipped element of the roof, which
would also serve the central flat’s kitchens.

2.7

To the rear elevation 16 windows are proposed. Eight of these would serve bedrooms
at both ground and first floor levels. Smaller windows are proposed at ground and first
floor levels, within recesses of the rear elevation which would serve the bathrooms of
the flats.

2.8

Each flat would have a gross internal floor space of 49.2m2.

2.9

The proposal would result in the loss of 21 garages and would provide a total of 28 car
parking spaces of which 2 would be disabled and 8 secure cycle space would be
provided. The existing access to the site would be retained.

2.10

Refuse storage would be provided to the southern boundary of the site within the
existing storage area.

2.11

It is proposed that the rest of the rear of the site beyond the courtyard for parking
would be soft landscaped to provide communal gardens. The existing trees within the
site would be retained.

2.12

Significant amendments to application since submitted:

Page 64

Agenda Item 6

2.13
3.0

None.
PUBLICITY

3.1

Adjoining Occupiers Notified

3.2

Method of Notification:

3.3

Letters were sent to 61 neighbouring occupiers dated 20 December 2016 and a site
notice was posted within the vicinity of the site dated 20 December 2016.

3.4

Number of Letters Received:

3.5

12 letters were received from the occupiers from various addresses from Sutton
Common Road, Reigate Avenue, Fairlands Avenue and Southfields Court.

3.6

The material objections raised are:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Insufficient car parking.
Overlooking and loss of privacy.
Increased noise and disturbance.
Loss of light.
Loss of outlook.
The proposal would harm the character of the area.

3.7

Official Consultation:

3.8

Senior Highways Engineer:

3.9

The Senior Highways Engineer was consulted and raised no objection to the parking
provision subject to a condition securing a construction method statement. A condition
securing the proposed cycle storage was also recommended.

3.10

Environmental Health:

3.11

Environmental Health raised no objection, but did acknowledge the potential presence
of land contamination from the existing garages. A condition is recommended
requiring a land contamination assessment and a remedial strategy if required. A
condition is also recommended for construction method statement detailing dust
control during construction.

3.12

Sustainability:

3.13

No objection was raised subject to appropriate conditions securing carbon dioxide
emission reduction measures, flood risk management, water efficiency and urban
heating reduction measures.

Page 65

Agenda Item 6

3.14

Waste Management

3.15

Waste Management raised no objection subject to pull out distances for the refuse
bins.

3.16

Principal Tree Officer

3.17

Raised no objection.

3.18

Biodiversity Officer

3.19

Raised no objection subject to a condition securing landscaping and the provision of
swift boxes and external house martin nests.

3.20

Transport for London

3.21

TfL raised no objection to the proposal subject to conditions securing electric vehicle
charging points and a Construction Logistics Plan.

3.22

Councillor Representation:

3.23

No Councillor representations have been made on this application.

4.0

MATERIAL PLANNING POLICIES

4.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that when
determining a planning application, regard is to be had to the development plan, and
the determination shall be made in accordance with the development plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan for the London
Borough of Sutton comprises the following documents:
●
●
●

The London Plan 2016
The Core Planning Strategy 2009
The Site Development Policies DPD 2012

4.2

Also a material consideration in determining planning applications are:
● National Planning Policy Framework
● National Planning Policy Guidance
● Adopted London Borough of Sutton Supplementary Planning Guidance
documents.
● Human Rights Act 2008
● Equality Act 2010
● Draft Local Plan

4.3

Material Planning Policies Considered

4.4

The London Plan Spatial Development Strategy for Greater London:

Page 66

Agenda Item 6
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

3.3 Increasing Housing Supply
3.4 Optimising housing potential
3.5 Quality and design of housing development (tables 3.2 & 3.3)
3.9 Mixed and balanced communities
5.1 Climate change mitigation
5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
5.3 Sustainable design and construction
5.7 Renewable energy
5.12 Flood risk management
5.13 Sustainable drainage
5.15 Water use and supplies
6.1 Strategic approach
6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity
6.9 Cycling
6.10 Walking
6.13 Parking
7.1 Lifetime Neighbourhoods
7.2 An inclusive environment
7.3 Designing out crime
7.4 Local Character
7.5 Public Realm
7.6 Architecture
7.19 Biodiversity and access to nature

4.5

Core Planning Strategy:
● PMP1 Housing Provision
● PMP2 Suburban Heartlands
● BP1 Housing Density
● BP9 Enabling Smarter Travel Choices an Area–based Approach
● BP10 Transport Strategic and Borough Wide Proposals
● BP12 Good Urban Design and Heritage

4.6

Site Development Policies
● DM1 Character and Design
● DM2 Protecting Amenity
● DM3 Enhancing the Street Scene & Public Realm
● DM6 Climate Change Mitigation
● DM7 Flood Risk
● DM8 Climate Change Adaption
● DM9 Water Supply, Water Quality and Sewerage Infrastructure
● DM11 Contaminated Land
● DM17 Biodiversity, Habitats and Species
● DM19 Promoting Sustainable Transport & Accessibility
● DM20 Assessing the Transport Impact of New Development
● DM22 Parking
● DM21 New Development and the Highway Network
● DM22 Parking
● DM26 Housing Mix

Page 67

Agenda Item 6

● DM29 Housing Standards
4.7

Supplementary Planning Documents
● SPD14 Creating Locally Distinctive Places ‘Urban Design’

5.0

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
The principal considerations (including whether any material planning objections have
been reasonably addressed) in relation to this application are:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Use
Design Quality
Impact on Neighbours
Layout
Traffic & Parking
Biodiversity
Sustainability
Contaminated Land
Community Infrastructure Levy

5.1

Use:

5.2

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) states that “at the heart of the NPPF
is a presumption in favour of sustainable development.”

5.3

The NPPF requires the Council to make the most efficient use of land by maximising
the re-use of previously developed land and the conversion of existing buildings.

5.4

The NPPF states that within the overarching roles that the planning system ought to
play, a set of core land-use planning principles should underpin both plan-making and
decision-taking. One of the 12 principles is that planning should encourage the
effective use of land by reusing land that has been previously developed (brownfield
land), provided that it is not of high amenity value.

5.5

The London Plan outlines the need for residential development within London through
Policy 3.3 Increasing Housing Supply, while Policy 3.14 states that loss of housing
should be resisted. Policy 3.14 supports optimising housing potential subject to local
context and character. The policy states development proposals which compromise
this policy should be resisted.

5.6

In addition to regional and national policy, policy PMP1 of the Core Planning Strategy
supports new housing in sustainable locations. Core policy BP1 states that the
Council will ensure that new housing development will make the most efficient use of
land in accordance with the London Plan having regard to, amongst other things, local
character and transport accessibility.

5.7

This application seeks to increase the number of residential units within the site by

Agenda Item 6

Page 68

erecting a block of eight 1-bed flats to the rear of the site. The site as existing
comprises of one block of 30 flats with communal surface car parking and garages to
the rear. The proposal would result in 38 dwellings within the site.
5.8

The applicant has stated that the majority of the existing garages are not used, and the
proposal would result in additional dwellings on land that is not used to its full potential.
The principle of the development was considered to be acceptable during the
consideration of a similar proposal under application ref. B2016/74279/FUL.

5.9

The proposal would be making more efficient use of the existing residential land by
providing additional housing. For these reasons it is considered that the principle of
the proposal is acceptable.

5.10

Design Quality:

5.11

Policy BP12 and PMP2 of the adopted Core Planning Strategy, policy DM1, DM3 of
the Site Development Policies DPD and SPD14-Urban Design seek to ensure that
proposals are sympathetic to the appearance of the existing building, and that all
development complements and improves the character of the area and street scene.

5.12

The existing building on the site comprises an ‘L’ shaped three storey building, which
fronts Sutton Common Road and Reigate Avenue. Originally the existing buildings
had roof accommodation and have recently had an additional floor added within the
roof space under planning application ref. 2007/58106/FUL.

5.13

The proposal would involve the demolition of the existing garages, which provide little
visual amenity to the area and the erection of a two storey block of eight flats in their
place.

5.14

The proposed building would be of a similar scale and mass as the two storey
dwellings fronting Reigate Avenue, and Fairlands Avenue. The traditional design of
the roof and architectural detailing is considered to be sympathetic to the surrounding
area. Due to its location to the rear of the site, the proposal would not be readily
visible from the public realm.

5.15

The proposal would also introduce a communal garden area to the rear of the site
which would be landscaped, and would reduce the hardstanding and would improve
what is a relatively functional back land area.

5.16

The design of the proposal is very similar to the previously refused application ref.
B2016/74279/FUL, where no issues were raised in design terms.

5.17

For these reason above the proposal is considered to be acceptable in design terms
and would not cause harm to the character of the surrounding area or street scene.

5.18

Impact on Neighbours:

5.19

One of the 12 principles stated within the NPPF is that planning should ‘always seek to

Page 69

Agenda Item 6

secure high quality design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future
occupiers of land and buildings.’
5.20

Site Development Policy DM2 states that the Council will not grant planning
permission for any development that adversely affects the privacy, outlook or daylight
and sunlight of adjoining occupiers, or would unacceptably impact on the surrounding
area.

5.21

The proposed building would be located approximately 29 metres from the rear
elevation of the existing block of flats. The side facing windows on the northern
elevation of the proposed building would be approximately 14 metres from the rear
elevation of the dwellings fronting Reigate Avenue. The southern elevation of the
proposed building would be approximately 32 metres from the rear elevation of the
dwellings fronting Fairlands Avenue. The eastern elevation of the proposed building
would be approximately 21 metres from 157a and 157b Reigate Avenue. SPD14
requires a separation of 14 metres between rear and side facing elevations and 20
metres back to back to prevent overlooking and loss of privacy. The side facing
windows within the proposal would serve kitchens. The proposal would meet the
guidance given within SPD14 on window to window separation distances.

5.22

The proposed first floor side window in the northern elevation is denoted as being
obscure glazed to prevent overlooking. A condition is recommended to ensure the
norther first floor flank windows are obscure glazed and fixed shut to a height of 1.7
metres to protect the amenity of these properties noting the limited depth of their
gardens. It is considered that the proposal would not result in any significant
overlooking or loss of privacy to the neighbouring occupiers over and above what is
expected in a suburban setting.

5.23

Due to the separation distances and the modest height of the building, it is considered
that the proposal would not harm the amenity of neighbouring occupiers in terms of
loss of sunlight/daylight, or outlook.

5.24

The proposal would result in an intensification of the use of the site. Concern has
been raised by objectors regarding this intensification, in respect of an increase in
noise and disturbance. Taking into consideration the existing level of residential use
on the site, it is considered that the addition of eight 1-bedroomed flats would not result
in a significant increase in noise and disturbance, and would not adversely harm the
amenity of the neighbouring occupiers.

5.25

The layout of the proposal is very similar to the previously refused application
B2016/74279/FUL. It should be noted that impact on the amenity of neighbouring
occupiers was not a reason for refusal of the previously refused application.

5.26

As such the proposal is considered acceptable and would not result in an adverse
impact on the amenity of the neighbouring occupiers.

5.27

Layout:

Agenda Item 6

Page 70

5.28

Site Development Policy DM29 states that the Council will allow new residential
developments if the development provides sufficient living space, amenity space.
Detailed requirements and quantitative standards are further outlined in SPD14 and
the London Plan table 3.3 and these should be exceeded where possible.

5.29

The London Plan requires that 1-bedroom 2 person dwellings achieve a gross internal
floor space of 50m2. The proposed flats would be uniform in their layout and would
measure approximately 49.2m2. This is marginally under the London Plan standard,
but it is considered that this small shortfall would not result in significant harm to the
future occupiers’ amenity or the quality of the accommodation.

5.30

The layout of the flats would result in similar rooms being stacked above each other.
This would reduce any impact in relation to noise transfer between the flats.

5.31

The application proposes that the use of the existing waste/recycling bins, which are
stored on the southern boundary within the hard standing area to the rear of the
existing blocks. This is considered an acceptable arrangement.

5.32

In terms of amenity space, SPD14 recommends that 25m2 is provided for flats. The
London Plan recommends 5m2 per dwelling. The site as existing only has soft
landscaping to the frontages facing Sutton Common Road and Reigate Avenue. The
proposal would result in the demolition of the existing garages and provision of a soft
landscaped communal garden to the north and rear of the proposed building. This
would improve the existing situation in respect of private amenity space and
biodiversity and as such is considered acceptable.

5.33

Therefore, it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in terms of its layout and
private amenity space.

5.34

Traffic & Parking:

5.35

Site Development Policy DM22 and Core Policy BP10 state that new developments
will be expected to provide the appropriate amount of car parking necessary in
accordance with the Council’s restraint-based maximum car and cycle parking
standards, whilst the conversion of existing parking spaces to other uses should
demonstrate that parking is surplus to requirements and would not result in additional
on-street parking.

5.36

Application ref. B2016/74279/FUL was previously refused due to the loss in existing
parking provision on the site. The previously refused application proposed the
demolition of the existing garages and provision of 20 car parking spaces.

5.37

The applicant has submitted evidence with the application showing that the existing
garages, are not sold with the existing flats, but are commercially let either to the
residents of Southfields or non-residents of the site. The evidence shows that only
three of the garages are used by the existing residents of Southfields for the car
parking.

Page 71

Agenda Item 6

5.38

The Senior Highways Engineer considered the existing layout which has 17 spaces
and included 3 of the garages which are currently being used by residents of the
existing flats. Therefore there are a total of 20 spaces for the 30 existing flats, or 0.66
spaces per dwelling.

5.39

The proposal would provide 28 spaces. This would be 20 spaces for the existing flats
keeping the existing level of car parking on site, with another 8 spaces for the
proposed flats, keeping the additional car parking in line with the Councils 1 to 1
maximum parking standard.

5.40

As such the proposed car parking layout is considered to be acceptable and would
comply with Site Development Policy DM22 and Core Policy BP10.

5.41

Biodiversity

5.42

The Council’s Biodiversity Officer assessed the proposal and requested conditions
regarding landscaping and the provision of swift boxes and external house martin
nests. It is considered that provision of such facilities to provide nesting for these
species is reasonable in this instance and not over onerous.

5.43

The proposal would result in an increase in soft landscaped area to the rear of the site.
With the above condition recommended it is considered that the proposal would be
acceptable in terms of its impact on biodiversity.

5.44

Sustainability

5.45

The Council’s Sustainability Officer and raised no objection subject to conditions
securing an energy statement to reduce carbon dioxide emissions, sustainable urban
drainage systems (SUDS), water efficiency measures and measure to reduce urban
heating.

5.46

Whilst the energy statement, SUDS, and water efficiency measure are standard
conditions that are generally applied to most residential developments, the condition in
respect to urban heating is not. The London Plan refers to the use of conditions
relating to urban heating in relation to Major developments. As such it is considered
that this condition would be over onerous in this instance and it is recommended that
this condition is not appended to a decision notice should planning permission be
granted.

5.47

As such the proposal is considered acceptable in respect to the sustainability of the
development.

5.48

Community Infrastructure Levy

5.49

The London Borough of Sutton introduced its Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
charging schedule in April 2014. New residential units are charged at a rate of £100
per sqm. This is in addition to the Mayor’s CIL charged at £20 per sqm. CIL is charged
on the total net additional floorspace created (measured as Gross Internal Area).

Agenda Item 6

Page 72

Furthermore, in accordance with the Regulations, any existing buildings on site in
lawful use, which are proposed for a change of use as part of the chargeable
development and have been in continuous use for six months of the previous 36
months on the day planning permission first permits the chargeable development, will
not be charged CIL.
5.50

All Local Authorities are required to index the CIL charges to take account of price
increases between the time when charging schedules setting out an authority's rate
come into force, and the time at which planning permission is granted. In this instance
the London Borough of Sutton’s CIL has been indexed from its adoption in April 2014
and the Mayoral CIL indexed from its adoption in April 2012.

5.51

The proposal involves the demolition of existing garages, which when taken from the
total floor space created and would result in a total of 241m2 of additional floor space.
This development would be liable for a levy of £5,857.49 for the Mayor's CIL and
£27,326.78 for the London Borough of Sutton’s CIL.

6.0

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

6.1

The proposed building would be acceptable in principle and in terms of its design and
impact on the amenity of neighbouring and future occupiers. The proposal would
result in the in sufficient car parking provision in line with the Council’s maximum
standard. It would also improve the biodiversity of the site with additional landscaping
and retention of existing trees.

6.2

For these reasons it is therefore recommended that the application be granted
planning permission.

Background Papers: B2016/75975/FUL
Drawings and other documents can be viewed on line –
1) Go to page: http://gis.sutton.gov.uk/FASTWEB/welcome.asp
2) Enter Planning Application Number: B
 2016/75975
3) Click on Search and View Current Applications
4) Click on View Plans & Documents

Page 73

Agenda Item 6

G


Woodgavil Properties Ltd
Crown House Mews10 Warren
HillCheqvers Lane
EpsomWalton on the hill
KT18 7BXKT20 7ST

B2016/75975/FUL

DRAFT
WARNING: It is in your interests to ensure you obtain the approval of the Local
Planning Authority, where the conditions require that to occur. Failure to comply
with the following conditions may lead to enforcement action to secure compliance.
FIRST SCHEDULE
Southfields Court 180 SUTTON COMMON ROAD Sutton SM1 3JH
Demolition of existing 22 garages and erection of a detached two storey building
comprising eight 1-bedroomed self contained flats involving cycle and refuse stores and
alterations to existing parking layout.
SECOND SCHEDULE
(1) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date hereof.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as
amended.
(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans: L20 B 10, L20 B 11, L20 B 6 Rev. A, L20 B 7 Rev. A, L20 B 5
Rev. C, L20 B 1, L20 B 2, L20 B 3, L20 B 4, Design and Access Statement by Lawford
Associates (Amendment A) and Arboricultural Development Statement dated November

Agenda Item 6

Page 74

2016.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
(3) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a schedule of all
external materials and finishes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The agreed materials shall then be used in the construction of
the development hereby approved.
Reason: To ensure that the development is finished to a high quality, and to ensure
compliance with policy DM1 of the Site Development Policies DPD.
(4) The development shall not begin until a Construction Method
statement/Environmental Statement, to include details of:
(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c ) storage of plant and materials
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
(e) provision of boundary hoarding, behind any visibility zones
(f) construction traffic routing.
(g) means to control dust
(h) means to prevent deposition of mud on the highway.
has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall be constructed in accordance with the approved statement.
Reason: To ensure that the proposed development does not interfere with the free
flow of traffic and conditions of safety on the public highway.
(5) Prior to occupation of the development hereby approved, details and means of the
secure cycle storage shall be submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved details shall be implemented and permanently retained on site
thereafter.
Reason: To ensure compliance with London Plan policy 6.9.
(6) Prior to commencement of the development hereby approved, a contaminated land
assessment shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The contaminated land assessment shall include:
(a) A desk top study detailing the history of the site’s uses and proposing a site
investigation strategy based on the relevant information discovered by the desk study all
of which is to be submitted to the local planning authority for approval.
(b) A site investigation, carried out by a suitably qualified and accredited
consultant/contractor in accordance with a Quality Assured sampling and analysis
methodology.
(c) A site investigation report, in accordance with BS 5930:1999 (Code of Practice for
Site Investigations & BS10175: 2001 Code of Practice Investigation of Potentially
Contaminated Sites) detailing all investigative works and sampling on site, together with
the results of analysis, risk assessment to any receptors and a proposed remedial

Page 75

Agenda Item 6

strategy.
All work should generally be in accordance with the Environmental Protection Act 1990
(Part IIA), Statutory Guidance on Contaminated Land together with other relevant
legislation and guidance as described in the DETR documents Contaminated Land
Research Reports, CLR Series, 1994.
Reason: To prevent harm to human health and prevent pollution to the environment,
and to comply with policy DM11 of the Site Development Policies DPD.
(7) Should remedial works be required, the remedial strategy shall be submitted to and
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to the commencement of the
development hereby approved and the remedial works. On completion of the agreed
remedial works, a closure report and certificate of compliance endorsed by the
interested party/parties, shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority, prior to the occupation of the site by end users.
Reason: To prevent harm to human health and prevent pollution to the environment,
and to comply with policy DM11 of the Site Development Policies DPD.
(8) If during implementation of the development hereby approved, land contamination is
encountered which has not previously been identified, this land contamination shall be
fully assessed and a specific contaminated land assessment and associated remedial
strategy shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority
before the additional remediation works are carried out. The agreed strategy shall be
implemented in full prior to completion of the development hereby approved.
Reason: To prevent harm to human health and prevent pollution to the environment,
and to comply with policy DM11 of the Site Development Policies DPD.
(9) Prior to building work starting on site, an Energy Statement incorporating
‘as-designed’ BRUKL outputs prepared under the Standard Assessment Procedure
(SAP) must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing which
demonstrates how each of the dwellings will apply the Mayor’s energy hierarchy (use
less energy, supply energy efficiently and use renewable energy) to secure at least a
19% reduction in CO2 emissions below the target emission rate (TER) based on Part
L1A of the 2013 Building Regulations and seek to achieve a 10% reduction in total
emissions (regulated and unregulated) through on-site renewable energy generation
Reason: To comply with Policy DM6 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD
(10) Prior to first occupation of the dwellings, ‘as-built’ BRUKL outputs prepared under
the Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing to demonstrate that the development has been carried
out in accordance with the approved details. If the development is unable to meet the
required reduction in CO2 emissions through the approved energy strategy, then any
shortfall shall be made up through the application of further sustainability measures
unless otherwise approved by the Local Planning Authority in writing
Reason: To comply with Policy DM6 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD

Agenda Item 6

Page 76

(11) Prior to the commencement of the development hereby approved, a scheme for the
management of surface water run-off must be submitted to the Local Planning Authority
and approved in writing which identifies appropriate site drainage and flood risk
management measures, including SuDS, in order to manage surface water run-off as
close to its source as possible in accordance with the Mayor’s drainage hierarchy. The
proposed scheme shall ensure that the peak run-off rate for the 1 in 100 year 6-hour
rainfall event (plus climate change) will be as close as reasonably practicable to and no
more than 3 times the calculated greenfield run-off rate for the same event, and ensure
a minimum discharge rate of 5 litres per second per outfall.
Reason: To comply with Policy DM7 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD
(12) Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, written
confirmation that the approved site drainage and flood risk management measures,
including SuDS, have been implemented as part of the development as built must be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing. Where different from
the approved details, further evidence must be provided to show that the peak run-off
rate for the 1 in 100 year 6-hour rainfall event (plus climate change) will be as close as
reasonably practicable to and no more than 3 times the calculated greenfield run-off
rate for the same event, and ensure a minimum discharge rate of 5 litres per second per
outfall. All the measures implemented shall be retained for as long as the development
is in existence
Reason: To comply with Policy DM7 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD
(13) Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a completed
Water Efficiency Calculator for New Dwellings must be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing to show that internal potable water consumption for
each of the dwellings will be limited to 110 litres per person per day (l/p/d) based on the
Government’s national calculation method for water efficiency for the purpose of Part G
of the Building Regulations. The Water Efficiency Calculator shall be accompanied by
details of the location and type of all appliances or fittings that use water, the capacity or
flow rate of any equipment and any rainwater or greywater collection systems
incorporated as part of the development.
Reason:
(14) Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, a landscaping
scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The landscaping scheme shall show details and locations of the species of plants to be
used. The agreed details of landscaping shall be carried out in the first planting and
seeding season following the occupation of the building(s) or the completion of the
development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which within a period of
five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become
seriously damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others
of similar size and species, unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to
any variation.
Reason: To ensure the development is of a high quality and to improve the biodiversity
on site in accordance with DM17 of the Site Development Policies DPD.

Page 77

Agenda Item 6

(15) Prior to fist occupation of the development hereby approved, details of 3 no. swift
boxes and 3 no. external house martin nests shall be submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority. The agreed details shall be implemented and permanently
retained on site.
Reason: To ensure an improvement of the biodiversity on site and to comply with policy
DM17 of the Site Development Policies DPD.
(16) The first floor windows in the northern elevation of the development hereby
approved shall be glazed with obscure glass and fixed shut unless the parts of the
window which can be opened are more than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in
which the window is installed and shall be permanently retained.
Reason: To safeguard the current level of privacy enjoyed by the occupants of
adjoining properties.
INFORMATIVES.
(1) This approval only grants permission under section 57 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990. Further approval or consent may be required by other legislation, in
particular the Building Regulations and you should contact Building Control on 020 8770
5000 before proceeding with the work.
(2) NAMING AND NUMBERING. This permission creates one or more new units which
will require a correct postal address. Contact the Street Naming & Numbering Section
at 24 Denmark Road, Carshalton, Surrey SM5 2JG, telephone 020 8770 6369 or e-mail
street.naming@sutton.gov.uk..
(3) The Council consider that this permission is liable for a contribution under the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
Please note that if you commence work without giving prior notice of the start date the
CIL charge must be paid immediately.
(4) This application has been assessed against the relevant policies of the London Plan
2016, Sutton's Core Planning Strategy 2009 and the Site Development Policies DPD
2012. The proposal is generally in accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) and for this reason planning permission
is granted.
(5) The submitted application complied with the relevant planning policies and Sutton
Council has accordingly granted planning permission.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 79

Agenda Item 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 81

Agenda Item 7

PLANNING COMMITTEE - Date: 22 February 2017
Report of the Executive Head for Economic Development, Planning and Sustainability.
Ref: B2016/74612/FUL

Site:
Proposal:

Applicant:
Agent:

WARD: B07 / SUTTON CENTRAL

Time Taken:
35 weeks, 0 days

2 Vernon Road, Sutton, SM1 4QX
Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a two storey building with roof
accommodation to provide four 4 bedroomed dwellings and one car parking
space.
Mr A Mukherjee
Mr Abdul Sheikh

Recommendation:
GRANT PLANNING PERMISSION

Subject to the completion of a section 106 agreement by the 2
 2 April
2017, or such
longer period to be agreed in writing by the Executive Head of Economic Development,
Planning & Sustainability, after which time the resolution to grant will be rescinded.

Reason for Report to Committee: T
 he application has been de-delegated by Cllr. Bartolucci.
Summary of why application proposals are acceptable:
●

The land use principle of the redevelopment of this site is acceptable as the site
currently represents an un-conforming, historic use within a predominantly residential
area.

●

The design, form and detailing of the proposed dwellings is considered to relate
positively to the street scene, and would not cause harm to the character of the
surrounding area or the Newtown Area of Special Local Character. As such, the
proposal is considered to be acceptable in design terms.

●

The proposed dwellings would not give rise to additional increased levels of overlooking
or loss of privacy to neighbouring occupiers and no adverse impact in terms of noise
and disturbances, as such the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of its
relationship to neighbouring occupiers.

●

The quality of the proposed accommodation is considered to be acceptable and
complies with current housing standards.

●

Subject to conditions, it is considered that the proposed development would not have
any undue transport / highway or parking impacts.

Page 82

Agenda Item 7

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Site and Surroundings:

1.2

The application site is located on the southern side of Vernon Road, close to the
junction with Lind Road. The site is currently occupied by single storey commercial
buildings formerly used for car repairs and a spray booth. The buildings are positioned
around the boundaries of the site with a small courtyard area in the centre of the site.
Vehicular access to the site is from Vernon Road.

1.3

The surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature although there are some
commercial uses within the area. There is a church to the south-west of the site.

1.4

On the opposite side of the road, north and east along Vernon Road there is a mix of
dwelling types.

1.5

Site Specific Designation:
●
●
●

Newtown Area of Special Character;
Limit of Sustainable Residential Development;
Decentralised Energy Opportunity Area.

1.6

Relevant Planning History:

1.7

88/32306B EUC 119 - Use of premises for motor vehicle repairs and servicing.
Granted 23 January 1989.

1.8

91/35643F - Alterations and extensions to provide a spray booth facility. Granted 8
July 1991.

1.9

13/68173/OUT - Outline application with all matters reserved for the erection of a three
storey block comprising eight flats (4x2 bedrooms and 4x1 bedroomed). Withdrawn 29
November 2013.

1.10

2014/70881/FUL - Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a three storey
building with basement car and cycle parking comprising two 1 - bedroomed and ten 2
- bedroomed self contained flats together with covered refuse area at rear, new access
road and hard and soft landscaping. Withdrawn 10 March 2015.

1.11

2015/72055/FUL - Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a two storey building
with roof and basement accommodation comprising one 3 - bedroomed and seven 2 bedroomed self contained flats on ground and upper floors with car and cycle parking
and refuse and recycling facilities at basement level together with new access road
and associated landscaping. Refused on 12 August 2015 for the following reason:
The proposed development would not provide an appropriate addition to the area by
reason of its design, bulk and massing and would not make a positive contribution to

Page 83

Agenda Item 7

the street scene or the character and appearance of the Newton Area of Special Local
Character. The development is therefore contrary to Policy BP12 of the Council’s
adopted Core Planning Strategy and policies DM1, DM3 and DM4 of the Council’s
adopted Site Development Policies DPD.
1.12

A subsequent appeal (reference: APP/P5870/W/15/3136146) was dismissed by the
Planning Inspectorate.

2.0

APPLICATION PROPOSALS

2.1

Details of Proposal:

2.2

The application seeks full planning permission for the redevelopment of the site
involving the demolition of the existing buildings and the erection of a two storey
building with roof accommodation to provide four 4-bedroomed dwellings and one car
parking space.

2.3

The proposed building would be set back 2.75 metres from Vernon Road. The building
would be 21 metres wide, 12.8 metres deep at ground floor level and 10 metres deep
at first floor level. The building would be 5 metres high to eaves level and would have
an overall maximum height of 8.6 metres. The single storey projection to the rear
would have a maximum height of 2.9 metres.

2.4

The building would be finished in render and would have UPVC windows and doors.

2.5

One car parking space would be provided on site for one of the houses.

2.6

Significant amendments to application since submitted:

2.7

None.

3.0

PUBLICITY

3.1

Adjoining Occupiers Notified

3.2

Method of Notification:

3.3

Letters were sent to 19 adjoining occupiers on the 4 July 2016 and a site notice was
posted within the vicinity of the site.

3.4

Number of Letters Received:

3.5

8 letters of representation have been received from 6 addresses – 1 letter of
observation and 7 letters objecting to the proposal.

3.6

Letters were received from:
● 14A Lind Road;

Page 84

Agenda Item 7
●
●
●
●
●
3.7

Summary of Material Responses in objection:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

3.8

22 Lind Road;
24 Lind Road;
32 Lind Road;
4 Vernon Road;
8 Vernon Road.

Amenity Impacts – loss of light, overbearing, overlooking, noise;
Lack of parking;
Inaccurate plans;
Unacceptable height;
Out of character with the Newtown Area of Special Local Character;
No bin storage;
No energy saving measures.

Summary of Non-Material Representations:
●
●

Construction works to adjacent sites.
Issues regarding the Party Wall Act.

3.9

Official Consultation

3.10

Internal:

3.11

Senior Highways Engineer:

3.12

No objection subject to condition.

3.13

Sustainability Officer:

3.14

No objections subject to conditions to secure energy saving measures.

3.15

Environmental Health:

3.16

No objections subject to conditions.

3.17

Waste Management

3.18

No response received at time of writing.

3.19

External:

3.20

None

3.21

Councillor Representation:

3.22

The application has been de-delegated by Councillor Bartolucci on the grounds of l ack

Page 85

Agenda Item 7

of parking and inaccurate plans.
4.0

MATERIAL PLANNING POLICIES

4.1

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 states that when
determining a planning application, regard is to be had to the development plan, and
the determination shall be made in accordance with the development plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan for the London
Borough of Sutton comprises the following documents:
●
●
●

The London Plan 2016
The Core Planning Strategy 2009
The Site Development Policies DPD 2012

4.2

Also a material consideration in determining planning applications are:
● National Planning Policy Framework
● National Planning Policy Guidance
● Adopted London Borough of Sutton Supplementary Planning Guidance
documents.
● Human Rights Act 2008
● Equality Act 2010
● Draft Local Plan

4.3

Material Planning Policies Considered in Determining this Application:

4.4

The London Plan 2016:
Policy 2.5 Sub-regions
Policy 2.6 Outer London: vision and strategy
Policy 2.7 Outer London: economy
Policy 2.8 Outer London: transport
Policy 3.3 Increasing Housing Supply
Policy 3.4 Optimising Housing Potential
Policy 3.5 Quality and Design of Housing Developments
Policy 3.8 Housing Choice
Policy 3.9 Mixed and Balanced Communities
Policy 4.1 Developing London’s Economy
Policy 5.1 Climate change mitigation
Policy 5.2 Minimising carbon dioxide emissions
Policy 5.3 Sustainable design and construction
Policy 5.7 Renewable energy
Policy 5.13 Sustainable drainage
Policy 5.21 Contaminated land
Policy 6.2 Providing public transport capacity and safeguarding land for transport
Policy 6.3 Assessing effects of development on transport capacity.
Policy 6.7 Better streets and surface transport.
Policy 6.9 Cycling
Policy 6.10 Walking
Policy 6.11 Smoothing traffic flow and tackling congestion

Agenda Item 7

Page 86

Policy 6.12 Road network capacity
Policy 6.13 Parking
Policy 7.1 Lifetime Neighbourhoods
Policy 7.2 An Inclusive environment
Policy 7.3 Designing Out Crime
Policy 7.4 Local character
Policy 7.5 Public realm
Policy 7.6 Architecture
Policy 7.14 Improving Air Quality
Policy 7.15 Reducing and managing noise, improving and enhancing the acoustic
environment and promoting appropriate soundscapes
Policy 7.19 Biodiversity and Access to Nature
Policy 8.2 Planning obligations
Policy 8.3 Community infrastructure Levy
4.5

The Core Planning Strategy:
PMP1 Housing Provision
PMP2 Suburban Heartlands
BP1 Housing Density
BP5 Improving Health and Well-Being
BP6 One Planet Living
BP7 Flood Risk and Climate Change Adaptation
BP8 Waste Reduction and Management
BP9 Enabling Smarter Travel Choices – An Area – Based Approach.
BP10 Transport – Strategic and Borough Wide Proposals.
BP12 Good Urban Design and Heritage
DP2 Planning Obligations
DP3 Infrastructure Requirements and Delivery

4.6

Site Development Policies DPD:
DM1 Character and design
DM2 Protecting Amenity
DM3 Enhancing the Street Scene and Public Realm
DM4 Historic Environment
DM5 Sustainable Design and Construction
DM6 Climate Change Mitigation
DM7 Flood Risk
DM8 Climate Change Adaptation
DM9 Water Supply, Water Quality and Sewerage Infrastructure
DM11 Contaminated Land
DM12 Noise and Vibration
DM19 Promoting Sustainable transport and accessibility
DM20 Assessing the transport impact of new development
DM21 New development and the Highway Network
DM22 Parking
DM26 Housing Mix
DM29 Housing Standards
DM34 Other Land in Industrial Use

Page 87

4.7

Agenda Item 7

Supplementary Planning Guidance / Documents:
SPD5 - Planning Obligations
SPD14 - Creating Locally Distinctive Places (Urban Design Guide)
IPG11 - Sustainable Design and Construction

5.0

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS

5.1

The principal considerations (including whether any material planning objections have
been reasonably addressed) in relation to this application are:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Principle of Development
Design Quality and Heritage Considerations
Impact on Neighbours
Quality of Proposed Accommodation
Traffic & Parking
Refuse/Recycling
Contamination
Landscaping
Sustainability
Planning Obligations
Other Material Considerations

5.2

Principle of Development

5.3

Government guidance requires Local Authorities to make the best use of urban land
within the Borough while safeguarding the quality of the surrounding environment and
the amenity of neighbouring residents. This guidance is reflected in the Council’s
Development Plan Policy. The National Planning Policy Framework states that local
authorities should actively promote sustainable development attaching significant
weight to the benefits of social and economic growth.

5.4

The current planning application proposes the redevelopment of this brownfield site for
residential purpose. The NPPF (paragraph 51) states that Councils should normally
approve planning applications for change to residential use from commercial buildings
where demand (for residential) exists in that area and provided that there are no strong
economic reasons why such development would be inappropriate.

5.5

Policy 3.3 of the London Plan outlines the need for residential development within
London and Policy 3.4 supports the intensification of residential use on previously
developed land.

5.6

The application site is currently vacant and it is considered that the site represents an
un-conforming use within a predominantly residential area.

5.7

Policy DM34 of the Site Development Policies DPD states that the Council will not
grant planning permission for proposals resulting in the loss of industrial / business

Page 88

Agenda Item 7
floorspace unless:
●

●

The retention of the existing use will have a significant adverse effect on
residential amenity and there is no reasonable prospect that this effect can be
alleviated while retaining the use; or
There is genuine evidence including that the site has been marketed without
success, that the site is no longer suitable for industry/business uses.

5.8

The principle of redeveloping the industrial buildings for residential purposes was
accepted as part of the previous planning (reference: 2015/72055/FUL) and as part of
the subsequent appeal reference: APP/P5870/W/15/3136146). As such, no objection
is raised to the loss of the industrial buildings.

5.9

Overall, the current proposal makes a more efficient use of the site and complies with
policy 3.4 of the London Plan by optimising the housing output for this location. It is
therefore considered that the principle of redevelopment is appropriate and acceptable
in land use terms, subject to compliance with other policies in terms of design,
neighbouring amenity impact, the quality of the proposed accommodation and other
highway considerations.

5.10

Design Quality and Heritage Considerations:

5.11

Paragraph 64 of the NPPF states that “Permission should be refused for development
of poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the character
and quality of an area and the way it functions”. Policy 7.6 and 7.8 of the London Plan
and Policy BP12 of the Core Planning Strategy, Policy DM1 of the Site Development
Policies DPD and SPD14 requires development to respect or reinforce the character
and identity of the area and avoid developments which do not integrate well into the
surroundings.

5.12

The current application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing
single storey buildings and the erection of a terrace of four two-storey houses with roof
accommodation. The land levels within the site would be levelled prior to the
construction of the proposed dwellings.

5.13

The proposed terrace of houses would be set back 2.75 metres from the road and
would follow the established front building line of properties on Vernon Road. The
proposed building would extend approximately 2.5 metres beyond the rear elevation of
the closest property at no. 4 Vernon Road. The overall height of the proposed building
would be approximately 1.1 metres higher than the adjacent properties on Vernon
Road.

5.14

The application site is surrounded by buildings that are predominantly 2 storeys in
height, although it is noted from the officer’s site visit that there are taller buildings up
to 4 storeys nearby.

5.15

The proposed building would sit well within the site and would be set in from
neighbouring properties. It is considered that the proposed two storey building would

Page 89

Agenda Item 7

sit well in the street scene and not appear out of scale or proportion with its
surroundings.
5.16

The site is located within a sustainable residential area where higher residential
densities are permissible subject to good design and the provision of sufficient parking.
These matters are considered in more detail below, but in terms of its overall height,
scale and form, it is considered that the proposed development is acceptable in this
context and would offer a significant improvement to the street scape along this part of
Vernon Road.

5.17

The building would be finished in a subtle palette of materials including render and
UPVC windows and doors. It is therefore considered that the proposed materials
would be acceptable and would ensure that the development would positively enhance
the area complementing the mix of architecture in the area.

5.18

Should the application be approved a condition is recommended to e
 nsure that full
details and samples of materials for the proposed building (including windows, doors
and porches) are provided for approval by the Council before the commencement of
any works. This is to ensure that the building is finished to a high quality so it will
integrate successfully with the surrounding area.

5.19

Overall, it is considered that the proposed development presents an acceptable design
that would complement the existing character of the area. The development would
offer a significant visual improvement on the existing situation and as such the
proposal is considered acceptable in design terms and in accordance with the NPPF,
the London Plan 2016 and the Site Development Policies DPD.

5.20

Heritage Considerations

5.21

The application site is located within the Newtown Area of Special Local Character.

5.22

The Council’s Site Development Policies DPD describes the Newtown Area of Special
Local Character was designated as a ‘An area which is largely made up of two storey
Victorian terraced housing, the majority of which have small front gardens. Terraced
houses fall into two types, those with bay ground floor windows and those finished in a
traditional terraced design. Most of the original brick works has been painted or
rendered. Houses have maintained their character with most window replacement
following the original designs. The only vegetation is small shrubs which have been
cultivated within some of the front gardens’.

5.23

It is considered that the proposed building has been sensitively and appropriately
designed, including the sympathetic choice of materials and detailing, to respect the
surrounding area. The proposals would ensure that the special character and
appearance of the area are preserved.

5.24

Overall, it is considered that the proposals would present an acceptable design that
would respect the prevailing building pattern and would complement the character and
appearance of the site and the Newtown Area of Special Local Character.

Agenda Item 7

Page 90

5.25

Impact on Neighbours:

5.26

Policy DM2 of the Site Development Policies DPD states that the Council will not grant
planning permission for any development that adversely affects the amenities of future
occupiers or those currently occupying adjoining or nearby properties or has an
unacceptable impact on the surrounding area.

5.27

The proposed development would replace the existing single storey buildings with 4
two-storey houses with roof accommodation.

5.28

The bulk and mass of the proposed development would consolidate the built form on
site and provide more space to the boundaries than currently exists. Therefore, there
would be some alleviation of the overbearing effect, albeit limited, than that of the
existing single storey building on neighbouring properties.

5.29

The proposed building would be set in from the boundaries of the site. At ground floor
level, the building would extend approximately 2.5 metres beyond the rear elevation of
4 Vernon Road at ground floor level whilst at first floor level the building would follow
the established building lines of no. 4 Vernon Road. Given the limited projection
beyond the rear elevation of no. 4 it is considered that there would be no undue
impacts to the amenity of the occupiers of that property.

5.30

The property at no. 20 Lind Road would be 6.5 metres from the flank elevation of the
single storey projection, at the closest point. The separation distance from no. 26 Lind
Road would be a minimum of 10.6 metres from the flank elevation of the proposed
building. Given these distances, the proposed development would not have a harmful
impact on the amenities of these neighbouring occupiers.

5.31

The proposal does not include any windows on the flank elevations of the building and
therefore it is considered that there would be no undue overlooking to neighbouring
properties.

5.32

Given the former use of the site as a car repairs and a spray booth, it is considered
that any disturbance arising from the use as residential dwellings would not be to a
level that would be over and above that of the lawful use.

5.33

It considered that noise, disturbance and potential inconvenience during the
construction period can be adequately mitigated through planning conditions and as
such should the application be approved conditions have been recommended to
secure the submission of a Construction Management Plan to the Local Planning
Authority for approval, prior to the commencement of development.

5.34

On balance, it is concluded that the impact on neighbouring properties in terms of
outlook and loss of privacy would not be materially harmful. As such, the proposal
would comply with Site Development Policy DM2.

5.35

Quality of the Proposed Accommodation:

Page 91

Agenda Item 7

5.36

The detailed layout of the proposed dwellings should ensure that sufficient internal
space is provided in order to achieve a satisfactory level of accommodation that meets
or exceeds minimum internal size standards for individual rooms and dwellings in line
with the London Plan 2016. The design should also ensure that there is adequate
outdoor amenity space to serve the proposed dwellings.

5.37

Each of the proposed dwellings would have a floor area of 138 sqm and as such would
meet the minimum internal floor areas set out in the London Plan. All of the individual
rooms would also meet the minimum room size requirements. All habitable rooms
would be provided with fenestration for access to daylight, sunlight, and ventilation.

5.38

Policy DM29 outlines that amenity space provision should be in line with the provisions
of the Urban Design SPD. SPD14 requires adequate provision of private amenity
space advising that a minimum of 70 sqm of private garden space should be provided.
The London Plan requires a significantly lesser amount of, 5 sqm, private amenity
space per unit. Each of the proposed dwellings would have access to private amenity
space in form of private rear gardens ranging from 34 sqm to 102 sqm. In this
sustainable location and noting examples of similar sized rear gardens in the area it is
considered that the proposed development would provide an acceptable level of
amenity space for future occupiers.

5.39

Traffic and Parking:

5.40

Policy DM19 states that new developments should be accessible by, and make
provision for sustainable modes of transport. Policy DM22 requires all new
development to provide the appropriate amount of amount of car parking necessary in
accordance with the Council’s restraint-based maximum car parking standards taking
into account public transport accessibility levels (PTALs), existing publicly available
parking provision and usage in the vicinity of the site and need to deter unnecessary
car use while avoiding overspill parking problems. In addition, Policy DM22 states that
planning permission will be granted for developments proposing limited or no parking
providing the site is located in a high PTAL area.

5.41

Policy BP10 of the Core Planning Strategy states that developments should seek to
reduce the need to travel, advocate the use of sustainable modes of transport and
reduce the impact of traffic on residential areas. Policy DM22 ‘Parking’ of the Site
Development Policies DPD seeks to ensure that provision is made for off-street
parking for new proposals in line with the Council’s maximum car parking standards.
The policy continues that planning permission will not be granted for development that
is likely to result in increased on-street parking where it would adversely affect traffic
flows, bus movements, road safety and the amenities of local residents and the local
environment.

5.42

The application site is located on the southern side of Vernon Road, close to the
junction with Lind Road and has a PTAL rating of 5 which indicates a very good level
of public transport accessibility. The site is also located within a Controlled Parking
Zone (CPZ).

Agenda Item 7

Page 92

5.43

The application proposes one car parking space on the site, accessed via the existing
vehicular crossover from Vernon Road. The car parking space would be allocated to
one of the houses. Noting the sites location within the limits of sustainable residential
development and that there is good access to public transport within the vicinity it is
considered that the proposed parking provision would be acceptable.

5.44

All of the houses would be designated as ‘car free’ and should the application be
approved this would be secured by way of a S106 legal agreement.

5.45

The Council’s Senior Highway Engineer has not raised objections to the proposed
parking provision given that the applicant is willing to enter a S106 legal agreement
which would exempt future occupiers of all of the dwellings from applying for parking
permits.

5.46

It is considered that there is adequate space on site for future occupiers to store bikes.

5.47

Should the application be approved, conditions are also recommended to secure the
proposed car parking and to secure the submission of a construction management
plan to avoid hazard and obstruction being caused to users of the public highway.

5.48

As such, the Senior Highways Engineer raises no objection to the proposal subject to
conditions to secure the development as car free. The proposal would not have any
significant impact on the operation or safety of the highway network.

5.49

Refuse and Recycling:

5.50

The submitted plans do not indicate that refuse and recycling bins would be provided
for the proposed residential units. Notwithstanding, it is considered that there is
sufficient space on site to accommodate secure bin storage. As such, it is considered
that the proposals would be acceptable in terms of refuse and waste provision.

5.51

Landscaping:

5.52

Policy DM1 states that development should respect and retain, where possible,
existing landforms and the natural features of the site including trees of amenity value,
hedges and other landscape features, and make suitable provision for high quality
additional landscaping.

5.53

There are no protected trees located within the site, and the application is not
considered to have an adverse effect on any significant trees. The proposals are
considered to be generally acceptable and should the application be approved
conditions would be included to secure a high quality landscaping scheme to include
details of planting and maintenance.

5.54

Sustainability:

5.55

Policy 5.2 of the London Plan requires developments to make the fullest contribution to

Page 93

Agenda Item 7

the mitigation of, and adaptation to, climate change and to minimising carbon dioxide
emissions according to the following hierarchy: use less energy through the use of
passive design and energy efficiency measures, supply energy efficiently through the
use of decentralised energy provision and generate renewable energy on-site. Further
guidance is contained in the Council’s IPG11 'Sustainable design and construction',
Policy BP6 ‘One Planet Living’ of the Core Planning Strategy DPD, and Policies DM5
and DM6 of the Site Development Policies DPD, which promote the highest standards
of sustainable design and construction within the Borough in support of the Council's
vision of 'Creating a sustainable suburb'.
5.56

Should the application be approved, a condition would be included to ensure that an
energy statement is prepared and submitted to the Council in order to demonstrate
that the targets set out in Policy DM6 and London Plan Policy 5.2 will be delivered in
the completed development.

5.57

Policy DM9 of the Site Development Policies DPD requires all residential
developments to be designed to achieve good practice standards of water efficiency
by ensuring that internal potable water consumption is limited to 105 litres per person
per day (l/p/d). As such, should the application be approved a condition would be
included to secure the submission of a completed Water Efficiency Calculator for New
Dwellings prior to the commencement of development.

5.58

Policy DM7 of the Site Development Policies DPD, London Plan Policy 5.13 and the
Mayor’s Sustainable Design and Construction SPG require all proposed developments
to:
● use SuDS unless there are practical reasons for not doing so and aim to achieve
greenfield run-off rates by managing surface water run-off as close to its source
as possible in line with the Mayor’s drainage hierarchy;
● ensure that the runoff rate at peak times is no more than three times the
calculated greenfield rate;
● as a minimum, achieve at least 50% attenuation of the site’s surface water runoff
at peak times compared to previous conditions on the site (i.e. prior to
redevelopment); and
● ensure a minimum discharge rate of 5 litres per second per outfall; and
● give consideration to green roofs, walls or site planting measures where feasible.

5.59

Should the application be approved a condition would be included to secure the
submission of a scheme for the management of surface water run-off.

5.60

The Council’s Sustainability Officer has been consulted and raises no objection subject
to recommended conditions to secure the above.

5.61

Contamination:

5.62

Policy 5.21 (Contaminated land) of the London Plan 2015 states that appropriate
measures should be taken to ensure that development on previously contaminated
land does not activate or spread contamination. Site Development Policy DM11
advises that the Council will permit development proposals on or near potentially

Page 94

Agenda Item 7

contaminated sites, provided that a detailed site investigation is undertaken prior to the
start of construction.
5.63

Having regard to the historical industrial use of the site and the sensate end use
proposed (residential), a contaminated land assessment and associated remedial
strategy would be requested by condition.

5.64

Therefore, subject to conditions it is considered that the proposal would be in
accordance with Policy 5.21 of the London Plan 2016 and Policy DM11 of the Site
Development Policy DPD.

5.65

Planning Obligations:

5.66

The proposed development would be liable for the London Borough of Sutton’s
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as well as the Mayor of London’s CIL. All
residential developments are required to pay £120 per sqm (£100 per m2 for London
Borough of Sutton and £20 per m2 for the Mayor) on any new floorspace or net
increase of existing floorspace.

5.67

All Local Authorities are required to index the CIL charges to take account of price
increases between the time when charging schedules setting out an authority's rate
come into force, and the time at which planning permission is granted. In this instance
the London Borough of Sutton’s CIL has been indexed from its adoption in April 2014
and the Mayoral CIL indexed from its adoption in April 2012.

5.68

The existing buildings on site comprise an area of 442 sqm, however there is no
evidence to suggest that the site has been in use during the last 36 months and
therefore the CIL liability will be calculated on the total proposed floor area of 552 sqm.
The proposal would be liable for £76,007.12 (£13,416.32 for the Mayor’s CIL and
£62,590.79 for the London Borough of Sutton’s CIL).

5.69

A s106 legal agreement would secure the following:
●

The occupiers of the proposed dwellings would not be eligible to apply for car
parking permits.

5.70

The legal agreement has not yet been finalised. However, officers envisage that it
would be finalised by the time of the committee meeting. The officer recommendation
allows for this.

6.0

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

6.1

In light of the previous appeal decision, it is considered that the provision of residential
accommodation in the form of four terraced dwellings on the site is acceptable noting
that the surrounding area is predominantly residential in nature.

6.2

The design, form and detailing of the proposed dwellings is considered to relate
positively to the street scene, and would not cause harm to the character of the

Page 95

Agenda Item 7

surrounding area or the Newtown Area of Special Local Character. As such, the
proposal is considered to be acceptable in design terms.
6.3

The proposed dwellings would not give rise to increased levels of overlooking or loss
of privacy to neighbouring occupiers and no adverse impact in terms of noise and
disturbances, as such the proposal is considered acceptable in terms of its relationship
to neighbouring occupiers.

6.4

The quality of the proposed accommodation is acceptable and complies with current
housing standards.

6.5

Subject to conditions, it is considered that the proposed development would not have
any undue transport / highway or parking impacts.

6.6

It is therefore recommended that the application be approved, subject to the
recommended conditions.

Background Papers: B2016/74612/FUL
Drawings and other documents can be viewed on line –
1) Go to page: http://gis.sutton.gov.uk/FASTWEB/welcome.asp
2) Enter Planning Application Number: B
 2016/74612
3) Click on Search and View Current Applications
4) Click on View Plans & Documents

Agenda Item 7

Page 96

G


Mr Abdul Sheikh
22 South Lane West
London
KT3 5AQ

B2016/74612/FUL

DRAFT
WARNING: It is in your interests to ensure you obtain the approval of the Local
Planning Authority, where the conditions require that to occur. Failure to comply
with the following conditions may lead to enforcement action to secure compliance.
FIRST SCHEDULE
2 VERNON ROAD Sutton SM1 4QX
Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a two storey building with roof
accommodation to provide four 4 bedroomed dwellings and one car parking space.
SECOND SCHEDULE
(1) The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years
beginning with the date hereof.
Reason: To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as
amended.
(2) The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following approved plans and documents:
Drawing no. N/01, N/02, N/03, N/04, N/06, N/07, N08, N09.
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Page 97

Agenda Item 7

(3) Prior to the commencement of development, the type and treatment of the materials
to be used on the exterior of the building and hard surfacing areas including samples of
materials, shall submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenity of the area and a high standard of design.
(4) Prior to the occupation of development, the type and treatment of all boundary
treatments and/or fences/hedges/walls within the site shall submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in
accordance with the approved details prior to the first occupation of the building.
Reason: To safeguard, where applicable, the security, visual amenity and privacy of
occupiers of adjoining properties and the development hereby approved.
(5) Full details of both hard and soft landscaping proposals shall be submitted to and
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the development. All
works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and to a reasonable
standard in accordance with the relevant recommendations of appropriate British
Standards or other recognised Codes of Good Practice. The works shall be carried out
prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in accordance with the
timetable agreed with the Local Planning Authority. Any trees or plants that (within a
period of five years after planting) are removed, die, or become in the opinion of the
Local Planning Authority seriously damaged or defective shall be replaced as soon as is
reasonably practicable with others of species/size/number as originally approved,
unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation.
Reason: To ensure the provision of amenity, afforded by appropriate landscape design.
(6) No development shall take place until a Construction Management Plan which sets
out details of how the construction of the development hereby permitted will be
managed, have been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning
Authority.
The statement should include details of:
(a) parking for vehicles of site personnel, operatives and visitors
(b) loading and unloading of plant and materials
(c ) storage of plant and materials
(d) programme of works (including measures for traffic management)
(e) provision of boundary hoarding, behind any visibility zones
(f) construction traffic routing.
(g) means to minimise dust pollution, air pollution and suppress noise and vibration in
order to protect surrounding residential properties from any disturbance.
(h) means to prevent deposition of mud on the highway.
(i) means to manage and control construction traffic.
(j) Signing system for works traffic.
(k) Compliance with Sutton Council’s Code of Practice for the Control of Pollution and
noise from Demolition and Construction Sites, May 2008.
Construction works shall take place solely in accordance with the approved details.

Agenda Item 7

Page 98

Reason: To avoid hazard and obstruction being caused to users of the public highway
and in the interest of highway safety.
(7) All building operations in connection with the construction of external walls, roof, and
foundations; demolition or other external site works; works involving the use of plant or
machinery; the erection of scaffolding; the delivery of materials; the removal of materials
and spoil from the site, and the playing of amplified music or speech shall only take
place between the hours of 8.00am and 6.00pm Monday to Friday, and between 8.00
am and 1.00pm on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays, Public and Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjacent premises and the area
generally during the building construction process.
(8) The development shall not be occupied until space has been laid out within the site
in accordance with the approved plans for 1 car to be parked. The parking area shall be
used and permanently retained exclusively for its designated purpose.
Reason: To prevent obstruction and inconvenience to other highway user.
(9) The development hereby permitted shall not be occupied untill secure cycle parking
has been provided in accordance with details which have been agreed in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The cycle parking area shall be used and permanently
retained exclusively for its designated purpose.
Reason: To encourage access by non-car modes.
(10) The development hereby approved shall not be implemented until a contaminated
land assessment and associated remedial strategy, have been submitted to, and
agreed in writing by the local Planning Authority. The development shall thereafter be
carried out in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To prevent harm to human health and pollution of the environment.
(11) The approved remediation works shall be completed on site, in accordance with a
quality assurance scheme, agreed as part of the contaminated land assessment.
Reason: To prevent harm to human health and pollution of the environment in
accordance with the aims and objectives of Policy DM11 of the Site Development
Policies DPD.
(12) If during implementation of this development, contamination is encountered which
has not previously been identified, the additional contamination shall be fully assessed
and a specific contaminated land assessment and associated remedial strategy shall be
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the additional
remediation works are carried out. The agreed strategy shall be implemented in full prior
to completion of the development hereby approved.
Reason: To prevent harm to human health and pollution of the environment.
(13) On completion of the agreed remediation works, a closure report and certificate of
compliance, endorsed by the interested party/parties shall be submitted to and agreed

Page 99

Agenda Item 7

in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To prevent harm to human health and pollution of the environment.
(14) Prior to building work starting on site, an Energy Statement incorporating
‘as-designed’ BRUKL outputs prepared under the Standard Assessment Procedure
(SAP) shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing to
demonstrate how the development will apply the Mayor’s energy hierarchy (use less
energy, supply energy efficiently and use renewable energy) to secure at least a 25%
reduction in CO2 emissions below the target emission rate (TER) based on Part L1A of
the 2010 Building Regulations (or equivalent reduction compared to Part L1A 2013) and
seek to achieve a 10% reduction in total emissions (regulated and unregulated) through
on-site renewable energy generation.
Reason: To comply with Policy DM6 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD.
(15) Prior to occupation of the dwellings, ‘as-built’ BRUKL outputs prepared under the
Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) shall be submitted to the Local Planning
Authority and approved in writing to demonstrate that the development has been carried
out in accordance with the approved details. If the development is unable to meet the
required reduction in CO2 emissions through the approved energy strategy, then any
shortfall shall be made up through the application of further sustainability measures
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To comply with Policy DM6 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD.
(16) Prior to building work starting on site, a scheme for the management of surface
water run-off shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing
which identifies appropriate site drainage and flood risk management measures,
including SUDS, in order to manage surface water run-off as close to its source as
possible in accordance with the Mayor’s drainage hierarchy, achieve at least a 50%
attenuation of peak run-off rates compared to previous conditions on the site for all
storm events up to and including the 1 in 100 year 6-hour storm event (plus 30% for
climate change) and to achieve ‘greenfield’ run-off rates where possible.
Reason: To comply with Policy DM7 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD.
(17) Prior to the occupation of the development, written confirmation that the approved
site drainage and flood risk management measures, including SUDS, have been
implemented as part of the development as built shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority and approved in writing. Where different from the approved details,
further evidence shall be provided to show that the proposed development will achieve
at least a 50% attenuation of peak run-off rates compared to previous conditions on the
site for all storm events up to and including the 1 in 100 year 6-hour storm event (plus
30% for climate change). All the measures integrated shall be retained for as long as
the development is in existence.
Reason: To comply with Policy DM7 of Sutton’s Site Development Policies DPD, Policy
5.13 of the London Plan and Mayor’s SPG on ‘Sustainable Design and Construction’.

Agenda Item 7

Page 100

INFORMATIVES.
(1) This approval only grants permission under section 57 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990. Further approval or consent may be required by other legislation, in
particular the Building Regulations and you should contact Building Control on 020 8770
5000 before proceeding with the work.
(2) This application has been assessed against the relevant policies of the London Plan
2016, Sutton's Core Planning Strategy 2009 and the Site Development Policies DPD
2012. The proposal is generally in accordance with Section 38(6) of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended) and for this reason planning permission
is granted.
(3) The submitted application complied with the relevant planning policies and Sutton
Council has accordingly granted planning permission.
(4) NAMING AND NUMBERING. This permission creates one or more new units which
will require a correct postal address. Contact the Street Naming & Numbering Section
at 24 Denmark Road, Carshalton, Surrey SM5 2JG, telephone 020 8770 6369 or e-mail
street.naming@sutton.gov.uk..
(5) The Council consider that this permission is liable for a contribution under the
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).
Please note that if you commence work without giving prior notice of the start date the
CIL charge must be paid immediately.

Page 101

Agenda Item 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 103

Agenda Annex

Glossary of Common Planning Terms and Abbreviations
Affordable Housing – Includes social rented and intermediate housing, provided to
specified eligible households whose needs are not met by the market. Social rented
housing is owned and managed by local authorities, registered social landlords and others.
Intermediate affordable housing is housing at prices and rents above those of social rent
but below market price or rents. These can include shared equity and other low cost
homes for sale, and intermediate rent.
Amenity Space – The land that is part of the application site that is not built on. In the
case of dwellings, for example, it includes all garden land and not just the rear garden.
Area of Special Local Character – Areas designated locally by the Council with the
intention of protecting their character and appearance by managing change in a
sympathetic way.
Archaeological Priority Area – An area specified by local planning authorities to help
protect archaeological remains that might be affected by development. Larger sites in
these areas will always be assessed for their archaeological potential when application is
made for their redevelopment.
Article 4 Direction – A power available under the Town and Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) Order 1995 allowing the Council, in certain instances, to restrict
permitted development rights (see also ‘permitted development’).
BREEAM (Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method) –
Environmental assessment method for buildings. It sets the standard for best practice in
sustainable design and has become the measure used to describe a building's
environmental performance. BREEAM assesses buildings against a set criteria and
provides an overall score within a band providing a rating of either, pass, good, very good,
excellent or outstanding.
Conservation Area – An area designated by the Council under the Town and Country
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as possessing special
architectural or historical interest. The designation aims to protect an area’s character and
appearance by enabling the Council to exercise additional planning controls to manage
change in a sympathetic way. Trees are also given protection.
Density – Density is a measure of the intensity of use of housing land. It is calculated on
the basis of the number of habitable rooms per hectare. Density standards are set out in
the Unitary Development Plan (see also ‘habitable rooms’).
Environmental Impact Assessment (EIA) – The process by which information about the
likely environmental effects of major projects is gathered, evaluated and taken into account
by the local authority in considering whether or not planning permission should be granted.
Green Belt Land – A statutory regional strategic planning designation to prevent urban
sprawl by keeping land permanently open. The use of land within the Green Belt should
provide opportunities for access to the open countryside, provide opportunities for outdoor
sport and recreation, retain and enhance attractive landscapes, and secure nature
conservation.
Habitable Rooms – All separate living rooms and bedrooms, plus kitchens with a floor
area of 13 square metres or more. Bathrooms, toilets, cupboards, landings, halls, lobbies
and recesses are not included.

Agenda Annex

Page 104

LDF (Local Development Framework) – A group of documents that are the Council’s
current planning policies and have replaced the UDP.
Listed Building – The Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport compiles a
statutory list of buildings of special architectural or historic interest for the guidance of local
planning authorities in the exercise of their planning functions. This statutory listing
imposes additional planning controls. The Council has also designated some buildings of
local architectural interest (the local list) whose retention is encouraged, but they are not
subject to any additional planning controls.
Listed Building Consent – Required in addition to planning permission before any work
can be undertaken on a statutorily listed building. Consent is granted by a Government
regional office on the recommendation of the Council.
London Plan – A development strategy prepared by the Mayor of London. Major
applications that are of strategic importance to Greater London are determined by the
Mayor of London on the recommendation of the Council.
Metropolitan Open Land – A designation of land that is clearly distinguishable from the
built up area and can include facilities that serve the whole or a significant part of London.
It has the same level of protection as ‘Green Belt’ land and there is a presumption against
inappropriate development that does not preserve the open character of the land.
Permitted Development – Minor building work or changes in use, defined in the Town
and Country Planning (General Permitted Development Procedure) Order 1995, that can
be carried out without the need for planning permission.
Planning Brief – A statement regarding the Council’s views on the opportunities and
constraints for the development of a particular site, intended to guide potential developers.
Planning Obligations – An agreement under section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 entered into regarding the use or development of land. Obligations
may be used to enhance development proposals (see also ‘section 106 agreement’).
PPG (Planning Policy Guidance) – Documents prepared by the government after public
consultation to explain statutory provisions and provide guidance to local authorities and
others on planning policy and the operation of the planning system. Local authorities must
take their contents into account in preparing their development plan documents. The
guidance may also be relevant to decisions on individual planning applications and
appeals. New guidance is now referred to as:
PPS (Planning Policy Statements)
Public Open Space – Urban space, designated by the Council, defined where public
access is generally not formally established, but which fulfils or is capable of fulfilling a
recreational or non-recreational role.
Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) – A measure of the accessibility of a site to
the public transport network, taking into account walking time to public transport and
service availability. A PTAL calculation assigns a level of between 1a, representing very
low public transport accessibility, and 6b, representing very high public transport
accessibility, to any given site or point of interest. The higher the PTAL score, the better
the accessibility. A score of four would apply to town centre sites indicating that higher
density development was possible.

Page 105

Agenda Annex

Section 106 Agreement – A binding agreement under section 106 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 between the Council and a developer. It is completed on the
granting of planning permission and deals with matters linked to the proposed
development. It will usually involve the payment of a financial contribution, on a predetermined scale, towards public costs, such as a new road junction or additional school
places, arising as a result of a development (see also ‘planning obligations’).
Site of Importance for Nature Conservation (SINC) – A designation applied to important
nature conservation sites, which can be designated for both their ecology and geological
interest. They are of lesser quality than the nationally or internationally important Sites of
Special Scientific Interest (SSSI). Sites are designated in accordance with a published list
of criteria and supported by Natural England. They do not receive statutory protection but
are protected from damaging development by local and national planning policy.
Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) – A site of wildlife and natural features
safeguarded to protect its high natural heritage importance. Sites are protected under the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 from
development or other damage. Protection is not necessarily absolute - generally it
requires the SSSI interest to be considered properly against other factors.
Special Policy Area
Established residential areas where the Council seeks to retain their predominantly open,
landscape dominated layout, and preserve their character and appearance.
SPD (Supplementary Planning Document) – A document that supplements the UDP,
and which gives guidance on the Council’s policy towards certain types of development or
where certain circumstances arise (eg home extensions). Also referred to as:
SPG (Supplementary Planning Guidance)
Sustainable Development/Sustainability – Defined by the Brundtland Commission
(1987) as: “development which meets present needs without compromising the ability of
future generations to achieve their own needs and aspirations”. The World Conservation
Union (1991) definition is also useful - “improving the quality of life while living within the
carrying capacity of supporting ecosystems”.
Sustainable Residential Development Area
Areas designated by the Council in, or in close proximity to, town centres, where higher
housing densities can be achieved and amenity space and car parking standards can be
applied flexibly if certain design quality and sustainability objectives are met.
TfL – Transport for London, part of the Greater London Authority. Its role is to implement
the transport strategy and to manage transport services across London.
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) – Made under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990
by the local planning authority to protect trees of importance for amenity, landscape and
nature conservation.
UDP (Unitary Development Plan) – A group of documents adopted in 2003 that set out
the Council’s planning policies and which have now been superseded by a new group of
documents referred to as the Local Development Framework (see also LDF).
Use Class – The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 2005 classifies the
uses of premises into different classes. The use of premises can normally be changed to
a different use within the same class without the need for planning permission, but a
change to a use in a different class requires planning permission.

This page is intentionally left blank

